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PETERSON,Brett

From: PETERSON Brett

Sent: Monday, 21 March 2016 1:06 PM

To:

Subject: HPRM: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd - VET FEE HELP - Complaint

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

De

Your recent emails dated 22 February and 2 March 2016 refer. S e

As next steps in this matter we would suggest you submit a request to the provider, Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty
Ltd, for a review of the original decision. Once you have the outcome, or after the expiry of 45 days from the
provider receiving your request, you may apply to the Administrative Appeals Tribunal (AAT) for a review of your
application. This process must be followed in order for the AAT to have jurisdiction.

Further explanation of special circumstances requests is at
http://'studvassist‘gov.au/sites/studvas'sist/pavingbackmvloan/’re-crediting—a-help—debt/ pages/remitting-a-help-

debtitSpecialcircumstances and is set out below for your informatiori.

The department is:not able to assist further at this time.

Review processes — clause 46

You asked about review processes in relation to clause 46 of Schedule 1A of the Higher Education Support Act 2003,
and sought some clarification.

Original decision making
Subclause 46(2) provides that:

(2) A VET provider must, on the Secretary’s behalf, re-credit a person’s FEE-HELP balance with an
amount equal to the amounts of VET FEE-HELP assistance that the person received for a VET unit of study if:

(a) the person has been enrolled in the unit with the provider;and
{(b) the person has not completed the requirements for the unit during the period during which
the person undertook, or was to undertake, the unit; and
{c) the provider is satisfied that special circumstances apply to the person (see clause 48); and
(d) the person applies in writing to the provider for re-crediting of the FEE-HELP balance; and
(e) either:
(i) the application is made before the end of the application period under clause 49; or
{ii) the provider waives the requirement that the application be made before the end

of that period, on the ground that it would not be, or was not, possible for the application to
be made before the end of that period.

A provider’s decision under clause 46 would be an original decision.

Subclause 46(3) provides that ‘[i}f the provider is unable to act for-one or more of the purposes of subclause (2), or
clause 48, 49 or 50, the Secretary may act as if one or more of the references.in those provisions to the provider
were a reference to the Secretary’. In this context, our view is that unable to act means a provider cannot take the
action - an example might be where a provider perhaps ceased to exist. A refusal to re-credit does not equatetoa

provider being unable to-act.

An original decision is reviewable in accordance with clause 91. Itisa teviewable VET decision.



The decision maker on a reviewable VET decision is defined as follows. {per clause 91):

* the VET provider with whom the student is enrelled in the unit; or
e if the Secretary made the decision to refuse the re-crediting—the Secretary.

In this case, the decision maker for the reviewable decision is the VET provider,

Review/reconsideration
A reviewable decision is then itself subject to reconsideration in accordance with clauses 94, 95 and 96.

Clause 94 provides that;

(1) The reviewer of a reviewable VET decision is: :
(a) if the decision maker was a VET provider acting on behalf of the Secretary—the Secretary;
or
(b) in any other case—the decision maker, but see subclause (2).

{(2) If:

(a) a reviewable VET decision'was made by a delegate of a decision maker; and
(b} the decision is-to be reconsidered by a delegate of the decision maker;
then the delegate who reconsidlers the decision must be a person who:
{9 was not involved in making the decision; and
(d) occupies a position that is senior to that occupied by any person involved in making the
decision.

The Act places the power to make the review decision with the Secretary. However, clause 98 allows the Secretary
to make certain delegations. Specifically, subclause 98(2) provides that ‘[t]be Secretary may, in writing, delegate to a
review officer of a VET provider the Secretary’s powers under Subdivision 16-C to reconsider reviewable VET
decisions made by the provider’. The Secretary has, by instrument dated 4 January 2016, made such a delegation.

In this case therefore, the decision maker for the review: decision is the review officer in the VET provider.

Subclause 96(2) provides a timeliness limitation on this decision, in that the reviewer is taken to have confirmed the
decision if they do not give notice of a decision to the person within 45 days after receiving the person’s request.

Administrative Appeals Tribunal
Clause 97 in turn provides that ‘[a]n application may be made to the Administrative' Appeals Tribunal for the review

of a reviewable VET decision that has been confirmed, varied or set aside under clause 95 of 96’. That is, an
application may be made to the AAT in relation to a reconsideration decision with which a person is dissatisfied. The
AAT has no jurisdiction until a reconsideration decision:is made. Under ordinary circumstances the AAT would advise
the department of an application, and this is the point where the department would typically become involved.

As | understand it, this is covered in a recent AAT decision involving wir fige' Couinbs, with which | assume you are
familiar.

I would be grateful if you would please consider sending me a copy the AAT application should you ultimately

choose to make such an application. This woiild help us ensure we get involved at the earliest stage. In any event,
the Secretary of the Department of Education and Training should be named as the respondent in the papers you

lodge with the AAT.
I do not believe the departrrient is able to help further with this aspect of the matter.
Special circumstances

Subclause 46(2) depends upon the existence of ‘special circumnstances’, as defined by clause 48, which states that:



For the purposes of paragraph 46(2)(c), special circufnstances apply to the person if and only if the:* VET provider
receiving the application is satisfied that circumstances. apply to the person that:
(a) are beyond the person's control; and
(b) do not:make their full impact on the person intil onor after the * census date for the * VET unit of study-
in.question; and
(c) make it impracticable for the person to complete the requirerients for the unit in the period during
whiich the person undertook, or was to undertake, the unit.

Further information on special circumstances is available on the Study Assist website at
— www.studvassist.gov.au/sites/studyassist/payin backmyloan/re-ciediting-a-help-debt/pages/remittin

 |would.recommend you pay particular attention to this definition in progressing the matter.

Review processes — clause 51

You also asked about review processes in relation to clause 51 of Schedule 1A of the Higher Education Support Act
2003, and sought some clarification.

Subclause 51(1) provides that:
(1) A VET provider must, on the Secretary’s behalf, re-credit a person’s FEE-HELP balance with an
amount equal to the amouits of VET FEE-HELP assistance that the person received for a VET unit of study if:
{a) the person has been-enrolled in the unit with the provider; and
{b) the person has not completed the requirements for the unit during the period during which
the person undertook, or was to undertake, the unit because the provider ceased to provide the
unit as a result of ceasing to provide the course of which the unit formed part; and

{€) the VET tuition assufance requirements applied to the provider at the time the provider
ceased t¢ provide the unit; and .
(d) the person chase the option designated under the VET tuition assurance requirements as

VET tuition fee repayment in relation to the unit.
A provider’s decision under clause 51 would be an ariginal decision.

Subctause.51(2) provides that ‘[t]he Secretary may re-credit the: person’s FEE-HELP balance under subclause (1} if
the provider is unable te do s6". In this context also, our view is that unable to act means a provider cannot take the
action -:an example might be where a provider perhaps ceased to exist. A refusal to re-credit does.not equate toa

provider being.unable to act

An original decision made in relation to clause 51 is not a reviewable VET decision. The operation-6f the provision is
hoewever based on four abjective findings of fact (as per paragraphs 51(1)(a) - (d}}.

Review of an original decision therefore would need to proceed through the courts, and | would recommend you
seek legal advice should you wish to pursue that course.

However, before you take that step, | will agree to review the matter informally, subject to you providing sufficient
reason, evidence and other material indicating it would be appropriate to do so. Any such informal review would be
confined only to the terms of the provision. :

Inaccurate records, etc.

Thank you for bringing to our attention the issues about inaccurate student records and quality .of training.

We manage VET FEE-HELP providerson a risk basis, and will of course take your input into acgount.



The department’s focus is VET FEE-HELP, and its administration as an income contingent student loan. The issues
you raise about quality are-matters for the Australian Skills Quality Authority, and [ nete you have been in contact
with themn.

I'do not believe the department is able to help further with this aspect of the matter at this time.

Freedom of information

I note that you have mentioned freedom of information, and may be interested in making a reque’st under the
Freedom of Infermation Act 1982 (FOI Act). To assist you to make a valid request, [ would note that the FOI Act sets
out the requirements that a request must:

e bein writing;

» state that it is an application for the purposes of the FO!I Act:

* provide information concerning the document as is reasonably necessary to identify the document; and
* provide an address (e.g. an email address) for the purposes of correspondence.

In addition, requests must be sent to the address specified by the agency. Noting the above, if you wish to proceed
to make a request, please send your request by email to foi@education.gov.au, or if you prefer, by post to:

FOl Team Leader

Legal and Investigations Group
C50MA10

GPO Box 9880

CANBERRA ACT 2601

Further information about FOI is available on www.education.gov.au/freedom-information-0.

Brett Peterson
VET FEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programmes Group
Australian Government Department of Education and Training

—————

Opportunity through learning

www.education.gov.au

From:

Sent: Weanesday, Z March 2016 9:08 AM

To: Education ~ USI Admiin

Cc: Education - TQSS - Tertiary Study Enquiries

Subject: URGENT - USI transcripts and apparent misuse of VFH Funiding

Dear

[ cannot thank you all enough for assisting us to date to address these matters regarding not only the
issuance of incomplete and inaccurate academic transcripts by the BHFS, but the apparent misuse of my
VFH tuition funding for apparent remedial flights, etc. Thanks Ellie - see your email below. (Ellie, my
daughter's new and accurate CPL and MECIR transcripts from the NEW Flying School, FTA here in Adelaide,
have been forwarded to you/US! last week 50 please disregard all prior inaccurate.records from the Bruce
Hartwig Flying School for Fanaafi Sooaemalelagi as mentioned to youin August 2015.

4



| am still in ‘the lengthy: pracess of a repeated Stage 2 Appeals Process with BHFS (see 'cqnﬁdent‘ial copy
included here for your perusal and background information - please do let mé know if | need to elaborate
on any point or whether any corrections/clarifications are needed as [ am nota lawyer).

1 would, however, like clarification from your Departrment Tony and Mary-Anne as to who (your
Department or the AAT or ASQA) has/have the jurisdiction over hearing my case based on Section 46
and/or Section 51 of the HESA Act 2003. The AAT is equally confused and is requesting students seek this

~clarification from your yourself Tony as the Secretary. Mary-Anrie has been very helpful by phone, but we
~ will- need-a written-response from.you clarifying this matter of jurisdiction, or whether further
_investigation from ASQA is first required to substantiate non-compliance of the RTO and/or HESA/ASQA

Regulations.

As we need to submit this materiaf to the AAT by 8-3-2016, can | kindly ask for an immediate URGENT
response so that the Deputy Presiderit Bean of the AAT here in Adelaide can formulate an opinion as to
the best process to order a re-credit if sufficient grounds for a re-credit are demonstrated by each student

pilot.

DP Bean claims that she as the AAT does have jurisdiction over Section 46 but that we need to clarify from
the DET as to whether it has the power to make such a re-order or whether this power should be given to
an independent external reviewer such as the AAT? We are about to appear before the AAT for the 5th

time on March 22 and kindly seek your utmost support.

Finally, can we use the Freedom Of [nformation Application process to seek copies of your Department's
written instructions from Chris James to advise the RTO that use. of VFH Funds for students' apparent
unsubstantiated remedial flights is both improper and against your Department's intended use of these
VFH Funds as the practice is apparently continuing today and is the matter of apparent further complaints
from student pilots with respect to this misuse of VFH Funds?

We are using our FOI rights to help. us clarify the usage of our training funding by the RTO, BHFS.

Thank you for following up on this protracted request to your Department of Education and Training to
seek closure of the request for a VFH Re-credit.

Yours sincerely,

PS: STAGE 2 APREAL PROCESS FOR A FULL VET Fee-Help RE-CREDIT

Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd
9 DaKota Drive, Parafield Airport 5106.
Tuesday, March 1, 2016

Dear

I'refer to your School’s response to my Stage 1 Application for'a course refund under S. 51 of the
Higher Education Support Act 2003. The review to my Stage 1 Applicationi was dated and received on
29/02/2016 and signed by Mr. Johnston.

5



Irequestareviewof.. .. - —--.. n,based upon the fact that he has neither addressed my
complaint in full nor the new requirements of the NCVER.

wasey—--me—i TefETrS to a Tequirement for me to establish that I did not complete 16 Vet Fee Help Units.

1. To my knowledge, and as discussed during the AAT Conference of 19" J anuary 2016 and confirmed
by ASQA and also Mr. Chris James (the then Assistant Director of VET), the 15725SA Advanced
Diploma of Aviation (ADA) Course I enrolled in was a single unit course. This fact alone makes *

response nonsensical. All 58 modules formed the single Unit ADA Course.

2. My Stage 1 Complaint was clear. Your School did not provide/deliver to me at least 28 of the
58 Modules for this single unit ADA Course. It is not for me to prove that what I claimed you
didn’t deliver was not delivered. It is for your School to prove that it did deliver the 28
disputed Modules of the ADA Course. This ought to be a simple process for your School as it is

~ now aregulatory requirement of all RTOs (see details of the National Centre for Vocational
Education and Training Research (NCVER) below);

provide attendance records of the disputed Modules

provide dates of the program on which you delivered the Modules

provide my academic achievement records for the Modules

provide the name(s) of the lecturer who delivered the Modules on the School’s behalf and
provide sample notes and lesson plans from each Module.

N

i 1's claim in Para 2 of his “Discussion”, commencing; “Even if the Units were not provided
toyou......." also has no logical basis. The 15725SA Advanced Diploma Course was a tertiary course of
study. Your Scheol would have had a program to deliver all 58 Modules which made up the Unitand it
is now a regulatory requiremerit of all RTOs (see details of the National Centre for Vocational
Education and Training Research (NCVER) below).

..... 5 "~ -laim that I did not progress sufficiently in my studies to be able to begin/complete
those Modules cannot be supported.

Your School did not provide me with any accurate academic achievement record for the academic
study modules during the period of the ADA Course or within the designated 30 days after the Course
Completion Date (23-6-2015). The only record, which refers to my academic achievement for the
whole 58 Module ADSA Course, was the result sheet which referred to 16 module course cades, which
are subject to my claim that they were also not delivered. Most importantly, as the ADA Course was a
single Unit course, the Modules which formed the course were not integrated (i.e. no academic
module was reliant upon another).

I believe I can prove that your School made a conscious decision to cease delivery of my course in or
around February 2015. Following your School Directors’ decision to cease delivery of my ADA Course,
I'was subjected to coercion and offered a bribe (in the form of financial credits worth tens of
thousands of dollars), in a futile attemipt to force me to withdraw from my ADA Course like many

other student pilots did.
When your initial attempts of persuasion failed;

1. Your School made unjustifiable financial claims against me (i.e. an apparent Student Gap Payment
based on apparent Skills For All State Funding received by the School for apparently all 16 and/or
58 Modules apparently delivered to me by the Scheol — still under dispute),



2. Your firm, via your Lawyer’s office, threatened legal action against my father and fellow
students, who reasonably wished to discuss the matter your firm had put before them as a
matter of truth.and public interest.

3. You misused my VET Fee-Help Funds by utilizing them for other than my ADA Course tuition
fees, making further financial demands on me to pay for twe extra flights and this
unsubstantiated Student Gap Payment, and

4. Refused to make appropriate tuition resources available to me that were required for myself
and fellow student pilots to complete our ADA Course in a timely manner before the
contracted end date of 23-6-2015.

As evidence to my claims above, I have a plethora of emails, diary notes and letters written by the ™
" 'Sehool's Directors atnd/or ™ yi-Tsuggest you utilize your- -
resources to find this correspondence within your records, and make available to the NCVER my
accurate academic progress (including details of all my qualifications, all of the designated 58
modules attempted and/or undertaken, and the outcomes achieved for delivered /completed
modules) and make yourself fully aware of the liabilities of the situation.

As ani RTO, you are required to provide accurate and current information about the training your
Schoct-delivered to me since Jan 1 2015 as a condition of your RTO registration,and as an RTO you
are able to make corrections (where errors or omissions are identified) to the inaccurate training
information that your School has provided to me and may have submitted to the DET and/or the
NCVER, from which my USI Transcripts will be generated.

Thank you in advance,

PS - The National Centre for Vocational Educatien and Training Research (NCVER)

Later this year students with a USI account will be able to access records of the training they have
undertaken since 1 January 2015 via the Transcript Service. As a condition of their registration,
Registered Training Organisations (RTOs) are now required to submit information about the training
undertaken by their students to the National Centre for Vocational Education and Training Research
(NCVER). Itis thisinformation, which is kept in NCVER’s national data collections and which includes
details of qualifications, units or modules undertaken and the outcomes achieved, that students will
be able to view using the USLand from which they will be able to develop a transcript of their training
achievements since 1 January 2015. Students-will control access to this information and will be able
to provide it to third parties if and as they wish.

Where students consider that the information held or-issued by an RTO regarding their training is
incorrect or incomiplete, they will need to raise the issue with their RTO. Where a student cannot
resolve the issue to their satisfaction, they can escalate the matter to the appropriate authority. In
your case [ understand that you have approached the South Australian Office of the Training
Advocate, which is currently investigating your complaint.

As.RTOs are required to provide accurate and current information about the training theéy deliver as a
condition of their registration, they will be able to make corrections to the training information they
have submitted to the NCVER, from which USI Transcripts are generated, where errors or omissions
are identified.



From: Education - USI Admin
Sent: Tuesday, 1 March. 2016 4:10 PM
Tos ~

De:

I refer to your queries about the Unique Student ldentvfler {USI) Transcript Service-in connection with the training
undertaken by your daughter

Later this year students with a US| account will be able to access records of the training they have undertaken since
1 January 2015 via the Transcript Service. As a condition of their registration, Registered Training Organisations
(RTOs) are now required to submit information about the training undertaken by their students to the National
Centre for Vocational Education and Training Research (NCVER). [t is this information, which is kept in NCVER’s
national data collections and which includes details of qualifications, units or modules undertakeri and the outcomes
achieved, that students will be able to view using the USI and from which they will be able to develop a transcript of
their training achievements since 1 January 2015 . Students will control aceess to this information and will be abfe to

provide it to third parties if and as they wish.

Where students consider that the information held or issued by an RTO regarding their training is incorrect or
incomplete, they will need to raise the issue with their RTO. Where a student cannot resolve the issue to their
satisfaction, they can escalate the matter to the appropriate authority. In your case |-understand that you have
approached the South Australian Office of the Training Advocate, which is currently investigating your complaint.

As RTOs are required to provide accurate and current information about the training they deliver as a condition of
their registration, they will be-able to make corrections to the training information they have submitted to the
NCVER, from which USI Transcripts are generated, where errors or omissions are identified.

However, | must stress that the USI Office has no authority to intervene or adjudicate in disputes between students
and their RTOs in respect of training.or assessment or certification matters. The authority of the US| Office extends
solely to the issuing of USis and, when the Transcript Service becorries available, to enabling USI holders to view
their training records as submitted to the NCVER and generate a transcript from these.

I should also explain that the USI Transcript Service will be a secondary source of training information for individ uals,
over and above that which RTOs will have already provided to their students. The USI Transcript Service will not in
any way supersede or lessen RTOs' primary obligation to issue and maintain documentation about-qualifications and
training assessment. The US!I Transcript Service will be valuable in providing individuals with consolidated
information about their training drawn fror the data held by NCVER, but will not replace the actual qualifications
and training documentation issued by RTOs.

I trust thatthis information is helpful @nd | hope that the matter relating to your daughter’s training records will find
a satisfactory resclution. (IF NEEDED - Should you wish to clarify aspects of the US| Transcript Service further, you
could contact Ms Saloni Sharanon =~ =~ 77

Your sincerely

Ellie

Unique Student Identifier Office

Skills Policy Divison

17 Moore Street, Canberra City ACT 2601
PH: 1300 857 536

WWwWw.usi.gov.au



Naotice:

The information contained in this:émail message and any attached files may be confidential infermation,
and may also be the subject of legal professional privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any use,
disclosuré or copying of this.email is unauthorised. If you received this email il error, please notify the
sender by contacting the department's switchboard on 1300 566 046 during business hours (8am -5pm
Localtime) and delete all copies of this transmission together with any attachments.




PETERSON,Brett

From: PETERSON, Brett

Sent: Tuesday, 29 March 2016 12:26 PM

To:

Subject: FW: Delegation from the Secretary [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Attachments: 2013 Instrument of delegation.pdf; 2016 Instrument of delegation.pdf

Thank you for your email below.

| hadn’t forgotten about you. | did however want to check with our FOI team to be sure they had no concerns.

Attached for your information is a copy of the relevant pages from the instrument of delegation made by the
Secretary on4 December 2013. [ believe this is the instrument that would have been in force at the relevant time.

Also attached for your information is a copy of the relevant pages from the current instrument of delegation made
by the Secretary on 4 January 2016. This.will of course apply to decision made on or after that date.

In both cases, paragraph (c) in the instrument is the relevant part.
Brett Peterson

VET FEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programmes Group
Australian Government Department of Education and Training

Opportunity through learning

www.education.gov.au

From e
Sent: Monday, 28 March 2016 4:44 PM

To: PETERSON,Brett
Subject: RE: Delegation from the Secretary

Hello Brett,

Thank you for your patience in clarifying the issue of delegation for me in our telephone conversation last

Thursday.
1 hope you had a restful Easter break.

1 have had over 23 years experience in RTOs.
] appreciate the time and effort you have offered in attempting to resolve this issue.

In your email to tated that "The Secretary has, by instrument dated 4 January 2016,

made such a delegation.”

After speaking to you, | requested that you email me a copy of the prior delegation. As | haven't as
yet received it, | assumed you may have misplaced my email address.



[ would appreciate if you could send me @ copy of the prior delegation, as the Director of Bruce Hartwig
Flyirig School is adamant that the school did not have such a delegation prior to him receiving it via your
email in March of this year. '

The Administrative Appeals Tribunal, Convenor, Deputy President Katherine Bean, has also requested that

she be provided with such documentation.
I would be happy to answer any further questions you may have regarding this matter.

kind regards




copy of matters raised by

Attachment B

-May 2016



PETERSON,Brett

From: PETERSON ,Brett

Sent: Wadnesdav 18 Mav 2016 §54.PM

To:

Subiject: FW: Inquiry re the process to be followed should a VFH Re-credit be possible

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

___lam writing in response to your email below.

As you probably know, students organise their own training, and the départment has no role in deciding what VET
training anyone can or must do.

The department’s role is in.administering the VET FEE-HELP scheme, which is:an income contingent loan that
students may choose to use to help pay for the training they choose.

The issue as between a student and the department therefore relates to the department’s records being updated to
reflect a re-credit, allowing a balance against the maximum ameunt available, so that a student may-pursue training
with another provider. There are some consequent tax issues too.

When a HELP provider re-credits a student’s VET FEE-HELP or FEE-HELP balance-and remits the debt, the provider
must report data through a ‘revisions file’ to the department. Providers submit a revisions report in relation to each
quarter, although they can, if they choose, report data (both debts @nd remissions) more frequently.

Although HELP debts are collected through the tax system, providers do not report data to the Australian Taxation
Office {ATO). All student data, including the revisions data, is reported on the same quarterly cycle to the ATO by the

department.

Consequently there is typically a time lag between the student being told the debt has been remitted bythe
provider, and the data then being reported to the department by the provider, and then a further delay in the data
being forwarded to the ATO by the department.

The timing of these processes is as follows:

Submission deadlines New debts for census-dates in | Reporting to ATO

the reporting period

Revisions.reported inthe

petiod
31 May 1 January to 31 March 15 june - 31 Juily
31 August 1 April to 30 June 15 September - 31 October
31 October 1 July to 31 August 15 November - 30 December
31 March (the following yeai) | 1 Septemberi to 31 December | 15 April - 20 May

(the foliowing year)

Where-a revision is reported to the department it is processed in the ordinary course, ready for transmission to the
ATO at the next opportunity. At that time, a student will be able to see the outcome on their HELP debt by logging
on to the myUniAssist portal-at https://app.heims.edutation.gov.au/m uniassist/Forms/Logon.aspx. They will need
their Commonwealth Higher Education Student Suppart Number {CHESSN) to login.

Once the data is transferred to the ATO it then falls under the ATO processes in administering and applying the
revision {i.e. ATO processing). This adds more time to the student eéventually seeing the remitted debt via MyGov or

similar.



If students have concerns abouit their tax matters, ahd are able to confirm that the provider has submitted revised
data, they may wish to contact the ATO and explain to them that a revision of their debt has been forwarded to the

department, and discuss options available.

The contact details for the area that takes care of HELP debt discussions of this nature is at
www.ato.gov.au[individuaIs[study-and—training—‘support-loans/deferring—repayments/

Should the AAT decide to remit a student’s debt, the department liaises with the affected provider to have the
necessary revisions file submitted.

Brett Peterson
VET FEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programmes Group
Australian Z~-=-nment Department of Education and Training

Ph iy
Email . ]

Opportunity through learning

www.education.gov.au

From:
Sent: Friday, 13 May 2016 7:28 AM

To: PETERSON,Brett;
Subject: Inquiry re the process to be followed should a VFH Re-credit be possible

Morming Brett,

Can you please advise us who within your DET is best for us to liaise with to discuss the process to be
followed by affected student pilots should a VFH Re-credit be awarded to them in our case with BHFS P/L?

There is just an urgency for seme to re-commence their training ASAP.
. my daughter, would like to
1. Re-establish a VFH Loan for her engoing training costs incurred at FTA over the past 12 months

2. Continue her flying training at FTA and complete her ATPL (Advanced Diploma of Aviation) for about a
further $10,000 - this she should have completed under her original VFH Loan 12 months prior

3. Explore an issue that may have arisen at FTA where FTA is ona quota for VFH funding and it may have
all been allocated - any student pilots coming across from BHFS fo FTA to continue their flying training
under a potentially new VFH Loan structure (re-credited possibly) may need some guidance from DET as to
what rules are being applied. And

4. Discuss with someone how a CPL and MECIR at FTA (costing $94,746 at present under a VFH Loan)
could also include an ATPL Course for approx $10,000, but this may exceed your DET VFH maximum of
§$99,2007 These student pilots have already been compromised enough, but I am sure that many will at Jeast
appreciate the opportunity to at least further their flight training even if they no longer can attract full VEH
Assistance let alone the DSD Funding that was also once available to them but is no longer available -
appatently (we are also trying to establish this with DSD/Work Ready, but are only at the Freedom Of
Information Stages at present (See below for further explanation).



I am asking, purely theoretically, if the DET would even approve of such an option to have these 20 student
pilots re-trained at FTA (ora school of their-chioice) once they receive their VFH re-credits. These are
certainly exceptional circumistances and your theoretical guidance at this stage would be: gratefully
appreciated.as so many student pilots are anxious to recommence their flight trainings again.

We don't wish to pre-empt any decision from the AAT or even the DET, so may be I am out-of-order even
asking of you to guide us in a suitable direction in order to attain such information for our own preliminary
professional planning purposes.
" “These students remain dismayed as they learnt last week of new falsified academic records-for the ADA
‘Course beirig generated by BHFS P/L in Fanaafi's name and submitted-to-the-SA-Department of State.- . .-
~———-Pevelopment unbeknownst-to-the student: - - -~ - - S e e

Your ongoing assistance Brett is so much appreciated.
Sorry if this appears too presumptive, but we are endeavouring with our pre-planning to somehow continue

this ADA Course (or its equivalent) for all affected student pilots who were once enrolled at BHFS P/L but
jost this unique opportunity to train through no fault of their own..

Yours sincereiy



Attachment C

—copyofadviceto... . = ., _.___ 1 and the provider seekirig
to clarify review arrangements



'PETERSON,Brett L _

From: PETERSON;Breft

Sent:: Wednesday, 30 March 2016 9:13 AM'

To: KO:Maple

Subject: FW: Bruce Hartwig Flying School. Pty Ltd ~Nigel Coombs-and Fanaafi Sooaemalelagi -

VET FEE-HELP re:credit [SECEUNCLASSIFIED]

--Maple, - - - S .

For consideration please, Note the advice below:fram . at the Bruce-Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd that
" “the Department will be invited by the AAT to beconie involved in a case régarding ST
scheduled for 26 April 2016.

‘Brett Peterson
VET FEE-HELP Branch |-Skills Programmes Group

Adstralian Government Department of Education and Training
Ph:’
Email:”

L

Opportunity through learning

www.education.gov.au

From: PETERSON;Brett

Sent; Wednesday, 30 Maréh 2016 9:07 AM

To:"

Subject: FW: Bruce Hartwig Flying. School Pty- Ltd - i« ) ' i - VET FEE-HELP ré-
credit [SEC=UNGLASSIFIED]

Tharik you for your ermail below.

1 recently wrote to ! _ . ~_, outlining review-processes.

I"doi’t know-whetlier hé has shared that with you, so.1-am.writing to be sure'you have the same information.
Reviéw processés - clause 46

It appedrs there may be a need to clarify réview processes:in relatien to-clause 46 of Schedule 1A tothe Higher
Education Support Act 2003.

Original decision making
Subtlause 46{2) providésthat:

12) A VET provider friust, on the Secietary’s behalf, re-credit a person’s FEE-HELP balance-with-an amount equal
to the amounts of VET FEE:HELP assistance that the'persoa.received for a VET unit of study. if:
(a) the person.hasbeen enrolled in the unit-with the provider; and
(b) the.person has.not completed the requirements for the unit diring the period during whichthe person
undertook, or was to undertake, the unit; and
{c) the providet is satisfied that spetial circumstances apply to the person (see clause 48}; and.
(d) the person applies in writing to the provider for re-crediting of the FEE-HELP balance; and
{e)- -either:
1



{i)  the application is made before the-erid of the application period under clause 49;.er

(i) the provider waives the requirement that the application be made before the end of that period,
on-the:ground that it would hot be, or was not, possible for the application to be made before the
:end of that period.

A.provider’s decision under clause 46.would be an original decision.

Subclause 46(3) provides that ‘[i}f the provider is unablé to act for oné of ritere of the purposes of subélause (2), or
clause 48,.49 or 50, the Secretary inay act as.if one or more of the references in those provisions to the provider
were a reference to:the Secretary’. in this context, bur visw is that uriable to aét means a.provider cannot take the
action - an example might be where a provider perhaps ¢éased to exist. A refusal to re-credit does not equate to a
provider being unable to act.

An-original decision isreviewable in dccordante with clause 91. Itis a reviewable VET decision.
The decision maker-on a reviewable VET decision is defined as follows (perclaase 91):
¢ the VET provider with whém the student is énralled in the unit; or

« ifthe'Secretary made the decision to refuse the re-crediting—the Secretary.

The-decision maker: for the original/reviewable decisior is the VET provider.

Review/reconsideration
A.reviewable decision is then itself subiject to reconsideration in accordance with clauses 94, 95 and 96.

Clause 94 provides that;

(1) The réviewer of a reviewable VET decision.is:
{a) ifthe decision maker was a VET provider acting on behalf of the Secretary—the Secretary; or
{b) inany other case—the decision maker, but see subclause (2).

2) If:
(a) a reviewable VET decision was'made by-a delegate of a detision maker; and
{b) the decision is to be reconsidered by-a delegate of the decision maker;

then the delegate who reconsiders the decision must be a pefson who:

' (c) was not involved in making the decision; and

(d) occupies a position that is senior to that occupied by any persen involved in making the decision.

The Act places the power to make'the review décision with the:Setretary. However, clause 98 allows the Secretary
to make certain delegations. Specifically, subclause 98(2) provides that ‘[t}he Secretary may, in writing, delegate toa
review officer of a VET providérthe Secretary’s powers.under Subdivision 16-C to reconsider reviewable VET
decisions made by the provider. The Secrétary has, by instrument dated 4 Jariuary 2016, made such a defegation.
Similar-delegations.covering earlier periods were also made.

In a case such as we now have therefore, the decision maker for:the review decision is the review officer in the VET
provider.

Subclause 96(2) providés:a timeliness limitation on this decision, ini that the reviewer is:taken to have confirmed the
decision if they do notgive notice:of a decision to the person within 45 days-after receiving the person’s request.

Administrative Appeals Tribunal

Clause 97 in turn provides that ‘[a]n.application may be made to the Administrative Appeals Tribunal for the review
of a reviewable VET decision that has been confirmed; varied-or set aside under clause 95.or 96 Thatis, an
application niay. be made to the AAT in relationta a reconsideration decision with which a person is dissatisfied. The:

2



Specidl.circumstances

AAT has no j:uri'sdiction until & Féconsideration deision Is'madé: Under ordinary circymstances the-AAT would advise
the department-of.ai application, and'this is the point wherethe department would typically bacomme involved.

It would be-usual for the Secretary of thé Department of Education and Training to be fiamed as the réspondent in
the AAT (the-ofiginal decision.is made by a VET provider, under the terms-of the law, ‘on thé Secreta ry's:betialf’, a
reconsideration.of the original/feviewable décision is uridertakeri-by the VET previder as a-delegate of the Secretary,
and the debt for which remission is.sought is to the Australiaii Government).. "

‘Subglause-46(2) depends.upon the.existence-of ‘special circu mstances’, as defined by.clause-48, which states that:

Foi the purposes of paragraph:46(2)(c), special.circumstances apply to the person if-and only if the VET provider

receiving the application is satisfied that circumstarices apply to-the person that:

{a) aré beyond the person’s control; and

{b) do net make-their full impact on the person until'on or after the * census.date for the * VET unit of study in
question; and

{¢) makeit impracticable for the person to complete the-requirements for the unit in the period-during which
the persoiuridertook, or was:to undertake, the unit;

Further information on special eircumstances is-available on the Study Assist website at

www.studyassist.gov.au/sites/studyassist/payingbackmyloan/re-crediti ng-a-help-debt/pages/remitting-a-help-debt

Review. processes — clause 51

As l.understand if, the potential application-of clause 51 of Schidule 1A to the Higher Education Support Act 2003
iwas also raised at the AAT.

‘Subclause 51(1) provides that:

(1) A VET provider must, orthe Secretary’s behalf, re=¢redit a person’s FEE-HELP balance with-an amaunt equal

1o the amounts.of VET FEE-HELP assistance that the person:received for a VET unit of study if:

(@) the person has been enralled in the unit with the provider; and

(_b) the person has net.cémpleted the-requiréments forthe unit during.the period during which the person
lindertook, or was to uridértake, thé unit-because the provider ceased to provide the:upit as a result:of
ceasing to provide the course of which the unit formed, part;and

(c) the VET tuition-assurance requirements applied to the:provider at the time the provider ééased to
provide the unit; and

{d the pérson chose the.option desighated Lindér the VET tuition assurance-requirementsas VET tuition
fee-repaymentin relation to the unit:

A provider's decision under clause 51 would be an original decision.
Subclause 512} provides that ‘[t]he Secretary riay fe-credit the person’s FEE-HELP balance under subclause (1) if
the pravideris unable to:go so’. In this context also, ourview is that uhable to do so mieans a provider cannot take

thie action - an example might be where a provider perhaps ceased to €xist. A refusal to re-credit doesnot.équateto
a proyider being unable te act.

An original decision-made in relation to ¢cla usé 51isnota reviewable VET décision. Thie operation.of the provision is
however biased on four objective findings of fact (as per paragraphs 51{1)(a) - (d}}.

Review-of afi-original decision therefore-would néed to proceed thraugh: the.courts.



Brett Peterson:
VET FEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programmes Group
puctialian Crvarnment Departmént of Education and Trainirig

F. P2 U
g

‘Opportunity through leariing

www.education.gov.au

From: e g A s et vt s e
Sent: Tuesday, 29 March 2016 6:19 PM

To: PETERSON Brett

Cc:~ : -
Subject: Re: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd - - VET FEE-HELP re-credit [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Brett

Many thanks for sending through the Instrument of Delegation. We can riow proceed as per instructions
from Deputy-President Bean at the AAT.

Also, the Denartment will be invited by the AAT to become involved'in a case regarding”

L, scheduled for 10am (ACST) on 26 April 2016. My understanding is that the involvement or
otherwise is at the discretion of the Department, as the representative capacity has already been delegated to
the Schoal.

Regards

g A S N

» Bruce Hartwig Flying Schobl

‘On 29 Mar 2016, 4t 12:09 PM, PETERSON,Brett >
wrote: '

Attached for your infarmation is-a copy of the relevant pages from the instrument of delegation
made by the-Secretary on 4 December 2013, | believe this is the instrument that would have been in
force at the relevant time for this particular case,

Also:attached for your information is a copy of the relevant pages from the current instrument of
delegation made by the Secretary on-4 January 2016. This will of coursée apply to.decisions madé on
.or after that date. ’

In:both.cases, paragraph. (c) in the instrument is the relevant part.

1 was a little surprised to get your email. 1. was-not aware that you had made arequest of the
department to be provided with a copy of the instrument of delegation — perhaps it has béen
directed elsewhere in the.departmeént. | dlso note the requirement for VET pravidef's to consider
and review requests from students-for re-erediting is set.out.in detail over several pages-in the VET
Administrative Information for Providers — see page 51 and after

at httpsi//docs.éducation.gov.au/system/files/doc/other/vet: aip. september 2015-20150916 .pdf




Brett Peterson
VET EEE-HELP'Branch I'Skills Programmes-Gréup
Anetraliamfavarnment Department of Education and Training

Oppoitunity through léarning

‘www.eduéation:gov.au

‘Sant: Mandau 70 Mo I04L Co20 Paa B

To:: e __; PETERSON, Brett; j

Nigeél. Coombs- '

Cci: ' 3

Subject: Re: Bruce Hartwig-Flying School Pty Ltd - - VET-FEE-HELP re-credit
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] "

Dear

The Department has not yet furnished the. Scheol with a formal signed legal Instrument of
Delegation. Until this oceurs, we are unable to further consider your request.

Regatds, .

Sent from Qutlook Mobile

On Sun, Mar 27, 2016 at 11:23 PM -0700 ) >
wrote:

Dear} ...,

4 « ~~quested by the Départment of Education, as to an adswer front yourself &

requesting a Full Vet Fee:'Help Re+Credit, has not been given to myself nor to'the
Department of Education in response to-a formal request by email from
Mr Brett Peterson, of the Departmeiit of Education, as outlined in his efiail below.
1 would formally like to.ascertain an answer from yourself regarding this overdue and
prolonged request for a Full Vet Fee Help Re-Credit concemning all parties involved please.

Kind Regards,

N
3.

.From: PETERSON,Brett ‘ Ao Aiemmtin s A >
‘Sent; Tuesday, 15 March 2ulb L:u3:5L rive.

Cer 1
Subject: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty td - _ ps - VET FEE-HELP re-credit
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED] )

To: ' ‘ ' T



Ce:

De

A former student of Bruce Hartwig Fiying School Pty Ltd (BHFS) " as written to the
Department of Education-and Fraining seeking review of the decision by BHES notto re-gredit linder
clause46 of the Higher Education Suppoert Act 2003 {HESA):

We understand there has been consideration of the matter by the Administrative Appeals Tribunal
(AAT), and that BHFS agreed to review the matter in accordance with clause 51 of HESA.

If BHFS conclude that re-credit is not appropriate under clause 51, then we would be grateful if they
would please conduct a reconsideration of the request made in accordance with clause 46. That
reconsideration (which would be under the terms.of clause 95) should, as the AAT has indicated,
specifically address the terms.of ¢lause 46, including a censideration of whethier there are special
circumstances as defined by clause 48.

The AAT was.of caurse correct to conclude that undérthe terms of clause 94 the power of
reconsideration has been giveri to the Secretary of the-Department of Education and T raining.
However, the AAT will not have been specifically aware that the Secretary has delegated power to
conduct a reconsideration under clause 95 to a review officer of a VET FEE-HELP provider-{who is
-appropriately independent and seniar),

If BHFS is unable to conduct a reconsideration for sore reason, would you please let me know.

[ would be grateful of you wotild let me know-the outcome .of your consideration of these matters
please.

Further information regarding formal complaints dnd special circumstances is below:

If a student has.a-complaint they are-able to raise it with their provider through.the provider's
formal grievance process. This includes requests for HELP debts to be remitted. A provider hasthe
discretion.te remit or cancel a student’s HELP debt dependent on the nattire-of the complaint. If the
matter gannot be satisfacterily resolvéd following your cormiplaint, alf groviders-have a
review/appeal- -process, Thereifter, reviewed decisians may be referred to an independent external
arhitrator, nominated by the provider, for further consideration. This information will be outlined in:

the provider's:policy documents.

Students may also request debt remission in cases where certain defined special eircumstances
apply, and reviews of unsuccessful applications-can be referred to the Administrative Appeals
Tribunal (AAT).. All providers should have their speCIaI circumstances policy.available on their

website,

Further information on special cireumstances is available on the Study Assist website
at www. studvasslst £OV. au/sntes/studyasswt/paym,gbackmvloa n/re-crediting-a-help-
elp-debt, and additional information on. apphcatnons to the AAT is available
g pplying-for-a-review. Please note, there are no provisions under the Higher
Education Suppart Act2003 to have a debt remitted if the student has successfully completed their

unit of study.

L also refer you to Chapter 10 (Ré-crediting and remission) of the:Higher Education:Providers: VET
Administrative [nformation for Providers.(AIP), available at: http://www.education.gov.au/help-

resources-providers.




Regards;

Brett Peterson '
VET EEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programmeés Group
Australian Government Department.of Education.and Training

- Opportunity through léarning —

__www.education:;gov.au.

Notice:

The information contained in this.email message and any attached files may be-confidential
information, and may also bé the subject.of legal professional privilege. If you are not the
intended récipient, any use, disclosure or copying of this émail is unauthorised. If you
received this email in error, please notify the sender by contacting the department's
switchiboard en 1300. 566 046 during business hours.(8am - 5pm Local time) and.delete all
copies. of this transmission together with any attachments.

‘Notice:

The information contained in this email messige afid any attachied filés may be confidential information,:and
may also be the subject of legal préfessional privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any. use, disclosure
or capying.of this email is-unauthorised. If you received this email in error; please notify the sender by contacling
the department's switchboard on 1300 566: 046:during business hours. (Bam - 5pin Local time) and deléte all
copies of this transmission together with any attachments, <2013 Instrument of delegation.pdf><2016 liistrument

of delegation.pdf>

Regards

-

“yr, Hartwig Air Group

Parafield Airport 1 South Australia | 5106
Office: +61 (0) 8 8258 4244 |

www.hartwigair.com.au
www.hartwigaircharter.com.au
www.hartwigairinternatiohal.corn




PETERSON,Brett
From: PETERSON,Brett

Sent: Tuesdav. 15 March 2016 2:06:PM
Te:

- Vet Fee Help- Re-credit - Briice Hartwig [SEC=UNGLASSIFIED]
.qouttars1oebtz1-2016 Coambs and Hartwig Air - written. reasons. pdf
q1 36dcufw0|5tz1 -2015_6212-20160308-bzelea.pdf;, N T It . gel

Subject:
Attachments:.

Thank you for your email below. [ am writing to follow up eur telephone conversation as promised.
You sheould alse have seen the email | have sent separately to the Bruce Hartwig Flying School.

As [ understand it, a commitment was given-by the schoel to consider Whethér a re-credit should be made because
your course has ceased to beiprovided. | assume they will formally advise you of the outcome of this shortly.

A clairn forre-credit based.on-special circumstances-goes through a few steps.

This is-what is’knibwn as-a.reviewable VET.decision, and is subject to a rig_ht of review. A person who is dissatisfied

with a réview decision may-request a reconsideration. A person:who is dissatisfied with a.reconsideration decision
may request review hy the AAT. The matter canthen flow:on te the courts.

| understand you may see it otherwise, however my understand is that the AAT has.reached thé conclusion that a

reconsideration has not happened. The finding was “the Tribunal does not have jurisdiction until.a clause 46 decision
has been made by the provider and.also reconsidered by the Secretary of the Department or his or-her delegate’.

The Secretary has delegated the power refating to reconsideration to review officers in VET providers. This is the

step | have asked the school to take formally.

Brett Peterson

VET FEE-HELP Branch I Skills Programmes-Group
Australian.Government Départmient of Education and. Training
LR B R e sk - _l_’,

Opportunity through léarning

www.education.gov.au

From:. o

Sent: Wednesday, 9. march 2016 12:39 PM
To: COOK, Tony

‘Ce: ‘
Subject: ke. veu v o re-tredit

P

Good Motning,

To the Secretary of the Department of Education and Training.
1



My name and | would like to add the following attachments a&dre‘ssing allmatters
conceriied

The-following attachmerits are for your réference.

Kind Regards,




Attactiment D

- copy of request for reconsideration of the provider's. decision



PETERSON,Brett S

From:

Sent; :TU‘esday, 19 Apnl 2016 3:28 PM
To:.
Ce: e AN, PETERSON Brett;
Subject: Re: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd- Nigel Ceombs - VET FEE-HELP re-tredit
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
“Our formal Review Officeris ™ ™~ "™ ", Who Tilsthe rolé . “played fo part it

either your training or prior-assessmeus.o1 your S:46 claim,

As previously stated in iy 8 April 2016.email to you (below), please pravide an application to the School

for 1o review onbehalf of the Department of Education & Training,

If you wish to use yi()u'r email below as that application, please indicate this is the case.

Alternatively, you may wish te prepare a new summary if you wish to add any more information, Mr Daw
(copied on this-email) will be given access to.all corfespondence sent to you, and received from you. A
decision will then be made within 45 days fror receipt of your application,

WL

On 19 Apr2016, at 2:32 PM, wrote:
Dear

(1) Who-is.your liaison officer,with regards to making a formal decision of a-Full Vét Fee
Help Re-credit,is it yourself ToTm)asa Director of BHFS {Bruce Hartwig Flyirig.
School PTY LTD)orisit =~ * "™ ">,aise a Directorof BHFS.

Urider Section (96) Schedule,1A,Reconsideration of reviewable VET decisions on request.

As | have clearly submitted my complaints to yourself in writing both-Stage 1.in July 2015,
and on the 29m October 2015 "Stage 2 (appeal)"clause 51 Re-crediting a person's. FEE-HELP
balance if the provider ceases to provide course of which. units forms part.of the Act Sub-
clause (1)A (1)B. | also seemed a review-of this decision dated 17 of November | was alse:

. rejected by yourself,on the 2611.0f November,and of which has been received by yourself
and rejected by you. Following this!.loved an.application with the Tribunal seeking a review
of my numerous'Stage 1 and stage 2 appeals,as outlined by the. AAT's{Administrative
Appeéals Tribunal) fmdmgs,by Deplity Président K Beam.

As-outlined in the Législation,Higher Education Support Act 2003,Schediile 1A,Clauses
46,51,94,96,97.



(2) L onee again dpplied to you ) n the-grounds of (Specjal
Circurnstances), seeking a Full Vet Fee Help Re-credit under sub-clause 46{2).,and again was
accessed and rejected by you.

(3) 94 Reviewer of decisions:

Stating the rélevant pages from within the instrument of delegation made by the Secretary
on 4 Decémber 2013, and the relevant pages from the current instrument of delegation made
by the Secretary on 4 January 2016. This will of course apply to decisions made on or after that
date,as mentioned within the instrurnent. The provider Bruce Ha rtwig Flying School PTY
LTD,ceased to continue the course upen taking-over the flying school,of aviation and non
aviation modules, which made up the One Unit,Advance Diploma of Aviation 15725SA course.

I have requested on numerous occasions by email,to offer a remission of a Full Vet Fee Help Re-
credit & expenses between the full course cost,due to non-delivery.of the Advance Diploma
Coiurse,under sectign 51,

After many face to face meeting with both yourself,anc &;fegdrding non-delivery
of course,-and the providers Contractual Obligations, as-outlinea in my original contract, with
Bruce Hartwig Flying School.And under the HESA VET Guidelines 2015; Devision.4-Genéral
Requirements,13 Meariing of ceases to provide an eligible VET course of study,(CEASED).

| have requested on many occasions but have not received, full academic transcripts for delivery
of the 58 modules you have claimed to deliver three of which were electives,also noting the
academic transcript.of my academic records which have been forwarded to me;that you claim
to have delivered (16) modules,which you have marked as failed,but were never delivered to

me.

As d result of your claims of delivery,these records now appear on the STELA printout of
Academic Transcript,| received fram BHFS,as failed-As a result of all of BHFS, Directofs. unider
new ownership of unfulfilled promises to myself and other students.on the Advance Diploma of
Aviation 157255a of full delivery of our course,has neither deli fvery of the {ADA) or

my numerous request fora "EULL VET FEE HELP RE-CREDIT™.

And your repeated attempts claiming a funding gap for modules that were néver delivered to
me claiming $27 840.00.and claiming remedial flights,again by ceasing delivery of my: caurse

{ADA-157255A).

Qr vntir rarincbodd cen S s b of BHFS, PTY LYD to me,by your Legal lawyer, '

| U . Jated 28w of June 2015 stating in his words "Mallce and
breached the Schools code of Conduct stating | have consistently and deliberately breached".As
well as the (Trade Practices Act Section 18 of the Australian Consumer Law).Because | did not
sign yourSchools new legal contract,forcifig myself and others to "Withdraw Erom The Course”.
As | was concérned for my own wellbeing and well as my fellow students;Who were obliged by
both Directors'to withdraw from the course under Coercion,by yourself and +the CFl,
as in theirbest intefest.Without proper legal advice,or proper informative and written
information,as well as feeling under duress,by yourself & »,as Directors of BHFS,

(4) Clause 46 Remission:

On the basis of section 51,sub-clause (1) A (1) B.The provider ceased to deliver (The
Advance Diploma of Aviation 157255A)set outlined under the Higher Education Support
Act,as mentionéd above,Of which was a one.unit course, encompassing 58 Modules in
total,6°of the modules were'to be electives.Only (3) of these modules needed to be:
undertaken to complete the Advance Dipfoma course.l therefore met repeatedly;with all



appropriate requests under these circumstanées;Stage. (1) and Stage (2) as well asiClause 51
{1) A (2) B.

These circumstances did not make théir full impact or mysélf-and cther studerits |
beliavé;until after the cerisus date,and | bélieve that thése circumstances were suclithat.it
was impracticable for myself to complete the-requirements forthe Unit.And as'such has
caused myself Severe Finanicial Hardship and emotional'stress.

I do also believe this has caused other students;to be in the same impracticable position as

myself.

Siricerely,
From 7 - ...._'....‘.c..‘..;-...,»,.... IR
Sent; Friday, 8 April 2016 1: 42 PM
- C. ‘<
L B .
Subject; Ke: Bruce Hartwig Flying Schoel Pty Ltdi- js - VET FEE-HELP re-eredit

5[S.EC=UNCLASSIF'IED_]_
Nigel

‘Mr. Péterson sent the School the relevant Instruments: of Delegation on 29'March 2016, and
we have subsequently appointed a suitably quallfled Review Officer in anticipation of
receiving a stibmission from yourself. No-such documient has arrived as yet, which would
presumably be similar (if not the same} as the one sent to the Secretary of the Department
of Education & Training. The relevant legislative: requirements aré as follows:

96 Reconsideration of reviewable VET decisions on request

3



(1) A-person whose interests are affected by a *reviewable VET
decision may request the *reviewer to reconsider the decision.

{2) The person’s request must be made by written rigtice given to the
*reviewer within 28 days, or such longer period as the reviewer
allows, after the day on which the person first received notice. of

the decision.

(3) The notice must set out thé reasons for making the request.

(4) After receiving the request, the *reviewer must reconsidér the
-decision and: :

(a) confirm the decision; or

(b) vary the decision; or

(c) set the decision aside and substitute a new decision.
(5) The *reviewer’s decision {the decision on-review) to confirm, vary
‘or set aside the decision takes effect:

(a) on the day specified in the decision on review; or
Comlaw Authoritative Act C2013C00029

Schedule 1A VET FEE-HELP Assistance Stheme

Part 3 Administration

Division 16 Review of decisions

Clause 97

*To find definitions of astefisked terms, see the Dictionary in Schedule 1.
300 Higher Education Support Act 2003

(b} if a day is not specified—on the day on which the decision on
review was made.

(6) The *reviewer must give the person written notice of the decision
on review.

(7) The notice:

(a) must be given within a reasonable period after the decision

on review is made; and

(b) must contaii a statement of the reasons for the decision on
review.

(8) The *reviewer is taken, for the purposes of this Division, to have
confirmed the decision if the reviewer does not give notice of a
decision te the person within 45 days after receiving the person’s
reguest.

Upen receipt of your formal written notice, you will be advised of the decision within 45
days after receipt of same.

'On 5 Apr 2016, at 4:23 PM,

wrote:

Dea



Following Mr Péterson recént eail & attachments,dated on-the 29th of
March 2016.

Stating the relevant pagesfrom’ within the instrument of delegation made by
the Secretary on 4 December 2013, and the relevant pages from.the current
instrument-of delegation made by the Secretary on 4 January'2016. This will of
course apply to decisions.made on or afterthat date,as mentioned below.

| would like to know as to-whether both yourselfand > Directors.of
BHFS, have-made a final'decision ofa full Vet Fee Help:re-credit for myself
regarding the ciirfent outlined iAstruments of delegation.

1 would also like an answer'by the close of business-on or before Monday the

18th-of April 2616,which-is. 14 business days from: Mr Peterson's recent emil
below.

Sincerely;

Erom:’PE'FERSOi:\!,-'Bfetb , e
Sent: Tuesdav. 29 March 2016 11:39 AM

To . Q- pria:
ce:.
Subject: RE: Brisce Hartwig Flying:School Pty Ltd - VET FEE-HELP fé-

credit (SECSUNCELASSIFIED]
Mr

Attached for yourinformation is a copy-of the relevant pages: from theinstrument
of delegation:made by the Secretary Gii4 Decermber 2013, | believe this is the
instrument that would have been in force at'the relevant time for this. particular

case:

Also.attached for yourinformation is-a copy of the relevant pages from:the current
instrument of délegation made by the Secretary on 4-January 2016, This will.of
caurse apply to decisions made-on or after that date.

in-both cases, paragraph (c} in thé instrument is the relevant part.

I was.a'little surprised to get your -email. f'was not.aware that you had made a
request of the department to be: providéd with a copy,of-the-inistrument-of
delegation — perhaps it has been: directed :elsewhere-in the department: I also riote
the requirement for VET providers to consider and review. requests- from students
for re-crediting is set out in, detail over several pagés in-the VET Administrative
Infermation for Providers- see page 51 and after
at https://docs.education.gov.aufs istem/files/dd

20150916. .pdf’

september 2015-




VET Administrative Information for Providers - About this site

does.education.gov.au

1 Genéral information The July 2014 VET Administrative Information for Providers (VET AIP) was updats

Brett Peterson
VET FEE-HELP-Branch | Skills Programmes Group
Australian Gevernment Department of Education and Training.

- -

‘Opportutiity threugh learning

www.education.gov:au

From: _

Sent: Monday, 28 March 2016 5:39 PM

To: ~

PETcrouiy,Brett: ; £:64, (gc wuuii DS

Cc:

Subject: Re: Bruce Hartwig Flymg School Pty Ltd - VET FEE-HELP
re-credit [SEC—UNCLASSIFIED]

Dear

The Department has not yet furnished the School with a formal signed legal
- Instrument of Delegation. Until this occurs; we are unable te further consider
your request.

Regards,
Sent from Outlock Mowte

On Sun, Mar 27, 2016 at 11:23 PM -0700, )
- * wrote:

Dear

As requested by the Department of Education, as to an answer from yourself’
&, "7 777 equesting a Full Vet Fee Help Re-Credit, has:not been
given to myseix nor to the Department of Education in response to a formal
request by email from

Mr Brett Petérson, of the Department of Education, as outlined in his email
below.

Iwould formally like to ascertain an.answer from yourself regardirig this
overdue and prolonged request for a Full Vet Fee Help Re-Credit concerning
all parties invelved please.



Kind Regards,

From: PETERSON,Brett <B

Sent; Tuésday, 15 March 2016 1:05:31 PM

To:g

Cc: 1

Subject: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd - 1§ - VET.FEE-HELP re-credit

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]
To: Mt wdvine cvergaens (Primary VET contact.in
H(TS)

Cer y

Deart

A former student-of Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd (BHFS),

has written to the Department.of Education and Traifiing seeking review of the
decision by BHFS not to re- -credit under clause 46 of the Higher Education Support
Act 2003, (HESA).

We understand there has been consideration-of thé matter by. the Admihistrative
Appeals Tribunal-(AAT), and that BHFS agreed t6.réview the matter in accordance
withclause 51:6f HESA.

If BHFS concludé that re=credit is not apprapriate under-clause 51, then'we would
be grateful'if they would please conduét-a reconsideration of the request made if
accordance with clause 46. That: reconsideratién (which would be-under the terms
of clause 95) should, as the AAT has indicated, specifically address the terms of
clause 46, including a.consideration of whether thefe are special circumstances.as
defined by-clause 48.

The AAT was of course correct te:concludé that under the terms. oficlause 94 the
power of reconsidération has been givento the Secretary-of the Départment of
Educatibn-and Trainirg..However, the AAT will not have been specifically aware that
the Secretary has delegated power to:conduct a: recorsideration under-clause 95 to
a revnew officer of a VET FEE-HELP provider (who is appropriately indépéndént and

\f BHFS is unable to conduct 4 reconsideration for sorfie reason, would you please
let me know.

I would be grateful of you would fet me know the outcome of your considération-of
thése matters:please.

Fiifther information regarding formal complaints and spécial circumstances is
below:.
If a student has a complamt they are able to raise it with-theirprovider through the

provxder’s formal grievance process. This includes requests for HELP debts to be
remitted. A provider has the discretion to remit or cancela student’'s HELP debt

7



Regards

dependent ‘on the nature of the complaint. If the matter cannot be satisfactorily
resolved followmg your comptaint,-all providers have a- feview/dppeal procéss.
Thereafter, reviewed décisions may:be referred.to an independeént external
arbltrator ndminated by the previder, far further consideration. This infarmation
will be outiined in the provider’s policy documents.

Students.may also request debt remission in cases where certain-defined special
circumstances apply, and reviews of unsuccessful applications can be Feferred to the
Administrative Appeals Tribunal (AAT), All previders should have thelrspecral
circlimstances palicy available on their website;

Further information on special circumstances is available on the Study Assist
website at wwwi.studyassist.gov-au/sites/studyassist/payingbackmyloan/re-
crediting -é-helg—debt[gages/remit@‘g—a-he[p-debt, and additional information on
applicitions to the AAT is available atwww.aat.gov.au/applying-for-a-review. Please
note, there are ne provisions underthe Higher Education Support Act 2003to have a.
debt remitted if the student has successfully completed their unit of study.

I also refer you to Chapter 10 (Re-crediting and remission) of the: Higher Education
Providers: VET Adrinistrative Information for Providers (AIP), available

Regards,

Brett Peterson

VET FEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programmes Group

Australian Government Department of Education and Training
Ph

Email:

Opportunity through learning

www.education.gov.au

Notige:

The information contained in this-email message ard any attached files may
be confidential ififormation, and may.alse be the subject of legal professional
privilege, If you are not the intended recipient, any use, disclosure or copying
of this émail is unauthorised. If you received this email in error, please notify
the'senider by contacting the department's switchboard on 1300 566-046
during business hours (8am - Spm Local'time) and delete all copies of this
transmission together with any attachments.

Notice:

The informatien ¢ontained in this email message and any attached files may
be confidential information, and may also be the subject of legal professional
privilege. If you are not the intended recipient, any use, disclosure or copying
of this email is unauthorised. f you received this email in error, please notify
the sender by contacting the department's switchboard on 1300 566 046
during business hours (8am - 5pm Local time) and. delete all copies of this
transmission together with any attachments.
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PETERSON,Brett

From:

Sent: fuesaay 14 -Anrl 9N1R 2-27 DRA

To: [

Ce: PETERSON,Brett; jes - - anwrage

Subject: Fw: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd- | = - VET FEE-HELP re-credit

[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Cortection on my draft [etter:

Kind Regards,
Nigel

Déar p

(1) Who is your liaison officer,with regards to making a formal decision of a Full Vet Fee Help Re-credit,is it
yourself i as a Director of BHFS (Bruce Hartwig Flying School-PTY LTD),or is it M
,also a Director of BHFS.

Under Section (96) Schedule,1A,Reconsideration of reviewable VET decisions on request.

As. 1 have clearly submitted my complaints to yourself in writing both Stage 1 in July 2015, and on

the 29w October 2015 "Stage 2 (appeal)”clause 51 Re-crediting a person's FEE-HELP balance if the
provider ceases to provide course of which units forms part of the Act Sub-clause:(1)A (1)B. | did also
seek a review of this decision, dated 17t of November and | was also rejected by yourself,on the 261 of
Nevember 2015,arnd of which has been received by yourself,accessed and rejected by you. Following this |
submitted an application with the Tribunal seeking a-review of my numerous Stage 1 and stage 2
appeals,as outlined by the AAT'$(Administrative Appeals Tribunal) findings,by Deputy President K Beam.

As outlined in the Legislation;Higher Ediication Support Act 2003,Schedule 1A,Clauses 46,51,94,96,97.
{2) 1 onge again applied to you NV n the grounds of (Special Circumstances),
seeKing a:Full Vet Fee Help Re-credit under.sub-clause 46(Z) ,and again was accessed.and rejected by you.

(3) 94 Reviewer of decisions:

Stating the relevant pages from within the instrument 6f delegation made by the Secretary on-4 Décember
2013, and the relevant pages from the current instrument of delegation made by the Secretaryon-4January
2016. This will of couirsé apply to decisions made on or after that date,as mentioned within.thé instrument.The
provider Bruce Hartwig Flying Sthool PTY LTD,ceased to continue the course upon taking over the flying
schoal,the course was not delivered of aviation'and.non aviation modules, which made up the One
Unit,Advance Diplama of Aviation 157255A course.

| have requested on numerous occasions by email,to offer a remission of a Full Vet Fee Help Ré-credit &
&xpenses between the full course cost,due to non-delivery of the-Advancé Diploia Course;uridér section 51.

After many face to face meeting with both yourselfand ="~ ™' "*ke,regarding non-délivery of course; and

the providers Contractual Obligations, as outlined in my erginai cuntract,with Bruce Hartwig Flying Schoel.And

L



-under the HESA VET Guidelines 2015;Devision 4-General Requirements,13 Meaning of ceases to-provide an
-€ligible VET course of study;(CEASED):

| have requested:on many eccasions, but havé not received, full academic transeripts.for delivery of the 58
-modules you have claimed to deliver three- of which-wére-eléctivés,aiso-noting the acadermic trafiscript-of my
‘academic récords which have been forwarded to me,that you-claim to-have delivered (16) modules,which you
‘have.marked as failed;but. were never delivered to-me,

As a result-of your ¢laims of delivery,these records now appear on:the STELA printout of Academic Transcript,|
feceived from BHFS,as failed.As 3 result of all of BHFS, Directors under néw ownership-of unfulfilled promlses to
‘myself-and.other students, on the Advance Diploma of Aviation 157255A of full delivery of our-course,has.

neithér | been dellvered the (ADA course) or my numerous request for a "FULLVET FEE HELP RE—CREDIT"

And your repedted attémpts claiming a funding.gap for modules that were néver delivered to.me,claiming
$27,840.00 in funding gap and ¢laiming remedial flights,by ceasing delivery of my course,(ADA-157255A).

'Or Vouir reneated attamnte ac a Niréctor of BHES, PTY LTD to me,by your Legal lawyer,

e e g . Dated 281 of June 2015. stating in his words "Mallce and breached the
Schools code of Conduct; statmg l have consistently and deliberatély breached".As well as the (Trade Practices
Act Section 18 of the Australian Consumer Law).Because | did-not sign your S¢hools new legal contract;forcing
myself and others to "Withdraw From The Course".

As.| was-concerned for my own wellbeing and-as well as my fellew students;Whé were obliged by both

Directors to withdraw from the course urider Coercion,by yourself and % the CFl, as in their best
interest.Witheut proper legal advice,or proper informative and written information;as well as feeling under

duress,by yourself & as Directors of BHFS.

(4) Clause 46 Remission:

On the basis of section 51,sub-clause (1) A (1).B.The provider ceased to deliver (The Advance Diploma of
Aviation 157255A)set-outlined under the Higher Education Support Act,as mentioned.above.Of which was
a one-unit course, enconmpassing 58 Moduiles:in total,6 of the modules were to be electives.Only. (3) of
thése modules needed to be undertaken to complete the Advance Diploma:course:l therefore met
repeated|y,with .all appropriate requests'under thesé. circumstances,Stage (1) and Stage (2) as well as.
Clause 51{1) A (2) 8.

These circuristances did not make their full impact on-myself and cther students | believe,until-after the
cénsus date,and | believe that these circumstances were such that it was impracticablé.for myself to
complete the requirements for the Unit.And as such has caused myself Severe Financial-Hardship and
émotional stress.

Sincerely,



Fron.. _ _
Se~* Triday, 8 April 2016 1:42 PM
Ta. . .-

Ce:l.

Subject: Re:-Bruce Hartwig Flyirig School Pty:ltd.. -~~~ . VET FEE-HELP re-credit [SEC=UUNCLASSIFIED]

Nigel

Mr. Péterson sent the School the relevant Instruments of Delegation on 29 March 2016, and we have
subsequently appointed a suitably gualified Review Officer in anticipation of receiving.a submission from
yourself. No such document has arrived as yet, which would presumably be similar (if not the sarie) as the
one sent to the Secretary. of thé Department of Education & Training. The relevant’ legislative

requirements are as follows:
96 ‘Reconsideration of reviewable VET decisions on request

(1) A person whose interests are affected by a *reviewable VET
decision may request the *reviewer to reconsider the decision.

(2) The person'’s request must be'made by written notice givento the
*reviewer within 28 days, or- such: Ionger penod as the reviewer
allows_, after theé day on which thé person first received notice of

the decision.

(3) The notice.must:set out the reasons for making the réquest.

(4) Afterreceiving the request, the *reviewer must reconsider the-
decision and:
{a) confirm the decision; or

(b) vary the decision; or

(¢} set the decision aside and substitute a new decision.

(5) The *reviewer’s decision (the decision on review) to corifirm, vary
or set aside the decisiori takes effect:

(a) on the day specified in the decision on reviéw; or

ComLaw Authoritative Act C2013€00029

Schedule 1A VET FEE-HELP Assistance Scheme

Part3 Administration

Division 16 Review of decisions
Clause 97

*Tofind definitions of asterisked terms, see thé Dietiriary in Schedule 1.

3,



300 Higher-Education Support Act 2003
(b)if aday is nét specified=—on the day-on which the decision on
Teviéw was made. ‘
(6) The *reviewer mﬁs't;g'i‘vfe, the peison written notice of the decision.
on-review. '
(7J The notice:
(a) must be given within-a reasonable period after the decision
on review is.made; and
— . {b) must contain a statement of-the reasons for the decision.on -
review

_(8) The *reviewer is taken, for the purposes of this Division, t6 have. ..

confirmed the decision if the reviewer does not give notice ofa
decision to the person within 45 days after receiving the person's
request.

Upon receipt of your formal written notice; you will be adviséd of the decision within 45 days aftef receipt
af same.

. Bruce Hartwig Flying School

On S5 Apr 2016, at 423 PM, T _ . ... »wrote:

-

bearl
Following Mr Peterson recent email & attachments,dated on the 29th-of March 2016..

Statiiig the relevant pages from within the instrumént of delegation made by the Secretary
on 4 December 2013, and the relevarit pages from the currentinstrument of delegation made.
by the Secretary on 4 January 2016. This will of course apply to decisions made:on or after that.
date,as mentioned below.

| would like to-know asto whethér both yeurself and h , Directors of BHFS! ‘iave madé a
final decision of a full Vet Fee Help re-tfedit for myself regarding the current outlined:
instruménts.of delegation.

| would alse like-an answer by the close-of business on-or before-Monday the 18th of April
2016,which is 14 business-days from.Mr Peterson's recent emdil below.

Sincerely,

From: PETERSON Brett.c,_ -

Sent: Tuesday, 29 March Y11k 1.1-2Q AAs

To: David. Johnston; S |1 U




Ce: v
Subject: RE: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd - VET FEE-HELP re-credit
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Mr.

Attached for your information is a copy of the relevant pages frem the instrument of delegation
made by the Secretary on 4 December 2013.1 believe this is the instrument that would have been in
force at the relevant time for this particular case.

Also attached for your infermation is.a copy of the relevant pages from the current instrument of
defegation made.by thé Secretaryon 4 Janudry 2016. This will of course apply to decisions made on
or after that date.

In both eases, paragraph (c) in the instrument is the relevant part.

I was a little surprised toget your-email: | wds hotaware that you had made a request of the
department to be provided with-a copy of the instrument of delegation —perhaps it has been-
directed elsewhere.in the department. Lalso note the requirement for VET providers to-cansider
and review requests from-students for re-creditingis set out in detail over several pages in the VET
Administrative Information for Providers — see page 51 and after

at https://docs.education.gov.au/system/files/doc/other/vet aip_september 2015-20150916 .pdf

VET Administrative Information for Providers - About this site

docs.education.gov.au

1 General information The July 2014 VET Administrative Informatien for Providers (VET AlP) was updated by th

Brett Peterson
VET FEE-HELP Branch I'Skills Programmes Group
Austratian Gavarnmant Department.of Education and Training

Ph: __ ____ .
Email: t

Opportunity through learning

www.edication.gov.au

From: David Johnston
Sent: Monday, 28 March 2016 5:39 PM

T R

Subject: Re: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd -
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

s - VET FEE-HELP re-credit

Dea-



The Departmeiit has not yet furished the Schecl with a formal signed legal Instrurient of
Delegation. Until this.oceurs, we are unablé to further consider your request.

Regards, T _
Sent from Qutlook Mobile

OnSun, Mar27, 2016 at 11:23 PM -0700, "Nigel Coorubs" <
WIOtE: o= e

DearMr .

As requested by the. Department.of Educafion, asto-an answer from yourself & 1
(,requesting-a Full Vet Fee Help Re-Credit, has net been given to myself nor to the
Depattment of Edueafion in tesponse to a formal request by email from

Mr Brett Peterson, of the-Department of Education, as outlined in his email below.

I would fotmally like to ascertain an answer from yourself regarding this overdue and
prolonged request for a Full Vet Fee Help Re-Credit concerning all parties involved please.

Kind Regards,

From: P_..
Sent: Tuesday, 15 March 2016 1:05:31 PM

To:

Ce: 1 A

‘Subject; Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd: 5 - VET FEE-HELP re-credit
[SEC=UNCLASSIFIED)

To: Mr | {Prifiiary VET contact ify HITS) u

e Y | S 1

Dear M

A former student of Bruce Hartwig Flying.School Pty Ltd (BHFS), "7 " “jaswritten tothe

Department of Education. and Training.seeking review-of the.decision by Brry nov (o re-crédit under
clatise 46:of the Higher Education Support-Act 2003 (HESA).

We understand there has been consideration of the matter by the Administrative Appeals Fribunal
{AAT);and that BHFS agreed to-review the matter in accordance with cfause 51 of HESA.

IFBHFS conclude that re-credit is not-apprepriate under clause 51, then we would be grateful if they
wolild please conduct a reconsidération of the request made in.accordance with clause-46. That
reconsideration (which would be under the terms of clause:95) should, as the AAT has indicated;
spegifically address the terms of clause 46, including @ consideration .of whether there-are special
circumstances as.defined by clause-48.

The AAT was of course correct to-conclude that underthe terms.of clause 94 the power of
reconsideration has been given to the Secretary of the Department.of Education and Training.
However, the AAT will not have been specifically-aware that the Secretary has delegated powerto



conduct:a reconsideration under clause 95 to a review officerof 3 VET FEE-HELP provider {who is
appropriately independent and senior).

If BHFS is unable to conduct a reconsideration for somé réason, would you please lét me know.

I'wauld Be grateful of you would let me know the dutcome of your consideration of these matters

please.

Further information regarding formal complaints and special circumstancesiis below:

If a student has a complaint they are able to raise it with their provider through the provider’s
formaligrievance process. This includes requests for HELP debts te.be remitted. A provider lias the
discretionto remit or cancel a student’s HELP-debt dependent on the nature of the complaint. If the
matter cannot be satisfactorily resolved following your complaint, all previders have a
review/appeal process, Thereafter, reviewed decisions may beé referred to an independent external
arbitrator, naminated by the provider, for further censideration. This iriformation will be outlined in

the provider's policy documents,

Students may also request debt remission in cases where certain defined special circumstances.
apply; and reviews of unsuccessful applications can be referred to the Administrative Appeals
Tribunal (AAT). All providers should have their special circumstances pelicy available on their
website.

Eurthet information on special circumstances is available on the Study Assist website

at www:studyassist.gov.au/sites/studyassist/payingbackmyloan/re-crediting-a-help-

debt/pa _ges/remnttmg—a -hélp-debt, and additional information on applications to the AAT is available
ing-for-a-review. Please note, there are no provisions under the Higher

Educat/on Support Act 2003to have a debt remitted if the student has successfully compieted their
unit of study.

I-also.refer you to Chapter 10 (Re-crediting and remissien) of the Highér Education Providers: VET
Administrative Information for Providers (AIP), available at: http://www.education.gov.au/help-
resources-providers.

Regards,

Brett Peterson

VET FEE-HELP Branch:| Skilis Programmes Group

Australian Government Bepartment of Education.and Training
Ph.

Email:

Opportunity thraugh learning

www.education.gov.au

Notice:
The information contained in this email message and any attached files may be confidential

information, and iay alse be the subject of legal professional privilege. If you are:not the
intended recipient, any use, disclosure or copying of this:email is unauthorised. If you:
received: this émail in error, please notify the sender by contacting the depaitment's
switchbeard on 1300 566 046 during business hours (8am - Spm Local time) and delete all
copies of this transmission together with any attachments.

7



Notice:

The information contained in this email méssage-and any attached files may be confidential
information, and may also be the subject of legal professional privilege. If you are not the
intended recipierit, any use; disclosute or copying.of this émail is uriauthorised. If you
received this émiail in error, please notify the sender by contactirig the department's
switchboard on 1300 566 046 during business hours (8am - Spm tocal time)-and delete all
icopies of this transmission together with any attachiments.

— Regards: e — -
( ] -
_— B d Hartwig‘AirGroup e R gy - -

Parafield Airport | South-Australia | 5106
Office: +61 (0) 8 82584244 | Mobile: +51(0)

www.hartwigair:com.au
www hartwigaircharter.com.au
www.hartwigairinternational.com

2




Attachmient E

~ copy of material relating to ‘ndicated inténtion to
make a further application to the AAT



PETERSON,Brett - .

Hbeheve that if he were to go backtothe

From:

Sent: Thursday, 21 Apnl 2016.2:59 PM

To: PETERSC™"

Gc:

Subject: HPKM; Ke: Bruce Hartwig: Flying Sthool: Pty - ;- VET FEE-HELP re-
credit [SEC’UNCLASSIFIED]

[Note — alled me abouit this. He'was keen to go back to the AAT straight-away. I told him. -

rk to.get a response on réeview from Hartwig. | mdlcated |

would advnse agalnstthat and he sho

A —now he would get the same result as last fimeé ~that'is, the
AAT will not hear the substantive matter, because in the absence of a review decision it has.ne jurisdiction.
Brett Petersofi]

it would appear tha1 "7 1 (SeeBelow) is not following the proper precess;that my previous attempts
have outlined. :

I would like to therefore advocate a:new AAT (Administrative: Appeals Tribunal) application as the
Department of Educatlon as the respondent.As these Directors.are contmuously,delaymg and denying
their duties as Directors of BHFS (Bruce Hartwig Flying School).

Sincerely,

From
Sent: Thursday, 21 Apr £U10 Lid riv

To;

ce: Brett Peterson; je:

Subject: Re: Bruce-Hartwig Flying Schoo! Pty: Ltd - bs - VET EEE-HELP re-credit (SEC=UNCLASSIFIED];

B . R N Lt S T T LN

Nigel

m. _p,leas“eci.to confirm that | have:-indeed read the Act.

The original formal decision was made by our Quality Committee, chaired by ~
It was.communicated to.you from myself, as.| was the minute-taker ror the commitiee

meséting.

We offer a second round “appeal”, which'is.NOT requsred under the:Act, but do 5o as a courtesy only. This
is to pravide a stop-gap measure in the eventof a. .major mistake/omission having been made whern:the
formal decision- was taken. This was. communicated to you by [

i repeat, the latter process isnot required by the Act.



The matter can theri be referred to'the department (or- Delegate), which is in this case
[ s senior to-the Chief Flying Instructor and was'nat involved in the original Quality

Committee decision.

| trust this satisfies your latest concerns. If not, | can-only suggest you re-approach the Department 6f
Education & Training and request that the matter is referred back for their Review Officer to consider. The
School has no preference as to whether the Department of the- School fulfils this role. | will leave this

matter with you to pursue.

Additionally, 1 look forward to your reply regarding my original request as to whether you wish to to have
your case reviewed based on your latest email, or wish to submit a mére comprehensive response.

Bruce Hartwig Flying School

On 21 Apr 2016, at 12:22 PM, » wrote:

Mr
As you may not have read the act,it clearly statesthe following.
See section below from the Higher Education Support Act 22 (b)

22 Review officers not to review own decisions

A *VET provider must ensure that a *review officer of the provider:
(a) does notreview a decision that the review officer was involved in making; and
(b) in reviewing a decision of the.provider, occupies a positicn that is senior to that
occupied by any-person involved in making the original decision.

Sincerely,
Frori: Davii Tt ettt e 2
Sent: Tuesday, 19 April 2016 3:28 Pv
To: ‘
Ce: S T . N ST

IS~ VL FoE-reny 1o oo

Subject:re: Bruce-narwig rynig ochool Pty Ltd -
[SEC=LINCLASSIFIED]



Our forrmal Review Officer is N ’ - played
no partin either your training er prier assessments of your S.46 claim.

As.previously stated.in my 8 April 2016 email to you {below), please provide an application
to thé School for _ to-review on behalf of the Department of Education.& Traiirig.

If you wish to use your émail below 3s that application, please indicate thisis the case.

Alternatively; you may wish-to-prepare a new summary.if you ‘wish to add any more .

information;— pied-on-th is-email)-will-be-given-access-to-all-correspondence:sent
- -to-you; and-received from.yau. A decision-will then be made within 45 days from.receipt of
your-application.

3

E_ruce Hartwig Flying Schoal

On 19 Ap 2016, at 2:32 PM, , >
wrote:
Dear

(1)Who is your liaison-officer;with regards to making a formal decision of a
‘Full Vet Fee Help:Re-credit,is:it yourself | n) as @ Director of
BHES (Bruce Hartwig Flying School PTY LTD);orisii = = ** ™"ealsoa
Director of BHFS.

‘Under Section (96) Schedule, 1A, Recorisideration.of reviewable VET
decisions on request.

As 1 have clearly submitted my complaints.to yourself in writing both Stage

1 ifi July 2015, and-on the 291w October 2015 "Stage 2 (appeal)“clause 51 Re-
créditing a person's FEE-HELP balance if the providér ceases to provide
course of which units forms.part of the:Act Sub-clause (1)A (1)B. I'also
seemied.a review. of this decision dated 17mof Novermber | was also rejected
by yourself,on the 26m1-of November,and of which has been received by
yourself and rejected by you. Following this ! loved.an application with the
Tribunal-seeking a review of my numerous Stage 1 and stage 2 appeals,as
outlined by the AAT's(Admihistrative Appeals Tribunal) findings,by Deputy
President K Beam.

As outlined in the Législation,Higher Education Support Act 2003,Schedule
1A Clauses 46,51,94,96,97.

(2) 1 ence again applied to you.\ jon-the grounds
of {Special Circumstances), seeking a:Full Vet Fee Help. Re-credit under sub-

claiise 46(2) ,and :again was accessed and rejected by you:

(3) 94 Reviewer of decisions:



Stating the relevant pages from within the instrumient 6f delegation. made by
the Secretary on-4 Decémber 2013, and the relevant pages from the current
instrument of delegation- made by the Secretary on 4 January 2016. This will of
course apply to decisions made on or after that date,as mentioned within the
instrument.The provider Bruce Hartwig Flying Scheol PTY LTD,ceased to
continue the course upan taking aver the flying school,of aviation and non
aviation modules, which made up the One Unit,Advance Dlploma of Aviation
157255A course.

I have réquested on numerous occasions by email,to offer a remission of a Full
Vet Fee Help Re-credit & expenses between the full course cost,due to non-
delivery of the Advance Diploma Course,under section 51.

After many face to face meéting with both.yourself,and N

'garding non-delivery of course, and the providers Contractual
Obligations, as outlined in my original contract,with Bruce Hartwig Flying
Schaol.And under the HESA VET Guidelines 2015;Devision 4-General
Requirements,13 Meaning of ceases to provide an eligible VET course of
study,(CEASED).
I have requested on many dccasions but have not received, full academic
transcripts for delivery of the 58 modules.you have claimed to deliver three of
whieh were electives,also noting the academic transeript of my academic
recerds which have beeh forwarded to me,that you claim to have delivered (16)
modules;which you have marked as failed, but were never delivered to me.

As a result of your claims of delivery,these records now appear on the STELA
printout.of Academic Transcript,! received from BHFS,as failed.As & result of all
of BHFS, Directors under new ownership of unfulfilled promises to myself and
other students on the Advance Diploma of Aviation 157255a of full delivery of
-our course,has neithier delivery of the (ADA) er my numerous request fora
"FULL VET FEE HELP RE-CREDIT".

And your repeated attempts claiminig.a funding gap fer modules that were never
delivered to me claiming $27,840.00 and c¢laiming remedial flights,again by
ceasing delivery of my course (ADA:15725SA).
Or your reneated attempts:as a Director of BHES. PTY ITD to melby your Legal
lawyer, _ _._, )ated 28w of June

2015 stating.in his words "Mallce and breached the Schools code:of Conduct,
stating | have consistently and deliberately breached".As well as the (Trade
Practices Act Section 18 of the Australian Consuriier Law).Because [ did not sign
your Schodls new legal contract,forcing myself and others to "Withdraw From
The Course".

As{was concerried for my own wellbeing and well as my fellow students;Wha
were obliged by both Directors to withdraw from the course under Coercion,by

yaurselfand M , as in their best interest.Witheut proper legal
advice,or proper informative and written information,as well as feeling under
duress,by yourself & as Directors of BHFS.

(4) Clause 46 Remissioni:

Oir the bsis of section 51,sub-clause (1) A (1) B.The provider ceased to-
deliver (The Advance Diploma of Aviation 157255A)set outlined under the
Higher Education Support Act,as méntioned above.Of which was a one unit

4



€ourse, encompassing 58 Madulés.in total;6 of the miodules were to:be-
electives.Orily(3)-of these modules. needéd:to be undertaken to complete
the Advance Diploma-course.l therefore.met repeatedly,wrth all- appropriate
requestsunder thése circurstances,Stage (1)-and Stage (2) as weli:as.Clause
51 (1).A (2)-8.

These.circumstances did.not make their fullfimpact:on myself and other
students | believe,until after the census date,and | bglieve that these
circumstances were such that it was impracticable for myselfto complete the.

requirements-forthe -Unit:An d-as-such has-caused-myself-Severe Financial
‘Hardship-and-emotional stress.

1-do.also. believe this has causéd-othér students,to:be in the same
impracticable position as myself.

Sincerely,

Fron., ..

Sent: Friday, 8 April 2016 1:42 PM

To:

(-~

Subjéct: Re: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty-Ltd - VET FEE-HELP re-
credit [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Nigel

Mr. Petersoii sent thie School the relevant Instruments of Delégation on 29

March 2016, and:we have subsequently appainted a suitably quahfled

Review: Officer in anticipation of receiving a submission from. yourself. No

s



such document has arrived as yet, which: would presumably be similar (if not
the same) as the one senit to the Secretary of the Department of Education &
Training. The relevant legislative requirements are as follows:

96 Reconsideration of reviewable VET decisions on request

(1) A person whose interests are affected by a *reviewable VET
decision may request thie *reviewer to recoiisider'thé decision.

(2) The person’s request must be made by written riotice giver to the
*reviewer within 28 days, or such longer period as the reviewer
allows, after the day on which the person first received notice of
the decision.

(3) The notice:must set out the reasons for making the request.

(4) After receiving the request, the *reviewer must reconsider the
decision and:

{a) confirm the decision; or

(b) vary the decision; or

(c) set the decision aside and suibstitute a new detision.

(5) The *reviewer’s decision (the decision on review) to-confirm, vary
-or set aside the decision takes effect:

(a) on the day specified in the decision on review: or

Comlaw Authoritative Act C2013C00029

Schedule 1A VET FEE-HELP Assistance Scheme

Part 3 Administration

Division 16 Review of decisions

Clause 97

*To find definitions of asterisked ternis, see the Dictiona ry in Schedule
1.

300 Higher Education Support Act 2003

(b} if a-day is not specified—on the day on which the decision on
review was made,

(6) The *reviewer must give the person-written notice of the decision
on review.

(7) The notice:

(a) must.be given within a reasonable period after the decision

onh review is made; and

(b) must contain a statement of the reasons for the decision on
réview.

(8) The *reviewer is taken, for the purposes. of this Division, to have
conflrmed the decision if the reviéwer does not give notice of a
decision to the person within 45 days after receiving the person’s

request.

Upon receipt of yaur-farmal written notice, you will be advised of the
decision within 45 days after receipt of same.

# 1, Bruge nartwig Flying School



On 5 Apr 2016, at 423 PM,  _
< ~wrote:

De:

Followirig Mr Pétersan recent email & attachments,dated on
the 29th of‘March 2016. '

Stating the relevant-pages from within the instrument of
delegation made by thie Secretary on 4 December 2013, and the
refevant pages from the.current instrument of delegation.-made
by the Secretary on 4 January 2016. This will of course apply to
deciéibns made on or-aftef that-date,as mentioned below.

I wauld like to know:as to whether both yourself and
lirectors of BHFS, have made a final decision:of afull- Vet
Fee Help re-credit for myself rggardihg the current eutlined

‘instruments of delegation.

1 would also like an answer by the:close of business-on or before

Monday the 18th of April 2016, which is 14 business days from
Mr Peterson's recent.email below.

‘Sincerely,

From: F’fETERS;ON,BEgtf <
Sent: Tuesdav.28'March ... .. ..~

To: e
Partridge;
Ce: 1

Subject: RE: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd = &
VET FEE-HELP're-credit [SECZUNCLASSIFIED]

v

Attactied foiyour information isa copy.of the relevant pages frony
theinstrument of delegation made by the Secretary on 4 Decémber
2013. | believe this is the instrument that would have beefin force
at the-relevant time for this particular case.

Also attached for your information is a-copy of the relevant pages
from the-currént instrument ofdelegation made by the Secretary
on 4 Jariuary 2016. This will of course apply to-decisions madé on-or
afterthat date,

In- both cases, paragraph () in the instrument is the relevant part.
7



[ was a:little surprised to get your email. | was not aware that you
had made a request of the departmentto be-provided with a copy
of the instrument of delegatior - perhaps it has been directed
elsewhére in the department. L alse note the requirement for VET
providers to.consider and réview requests frem students for re-
crediting is set out.in detail over several pages in the VET
Administrative.Information for Providers — see page 51 and after

at https://docs.education.gov. au/system/files/doc/other/vet_aip- s
eptember 2015-20150916 .pdf

VET Ad ministrative Information for Providers - About this site

docs.education.gov.au

1 General information The July 2014 VET Administrative Information for Previders (VET ALP) wa

Brett Peterson

VET FEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programmes Group

Australian Government Department of Education and Training
Ph:

Email

Opportunity through-learning

www.education.gov.au

Fromi.

Sent Mondav. 28: March 2016 5:39 PM

Tc - v dn b1} o T - e Sy
PE+eroON,l : .

Ce:

Subject: Re: Bruce Hartwig Flymg School Pty Ltd - -
VET FEE-HELP re-credit [SEC=UNCLASSIFIED]

Dear

The Department has not yet furnished the Schoel with a formal
signed legal Instrument of Delegation. Until this occurs, we ate
unablé to further censider your request.

Regards,

Sent. from Qutlook Mobile

On Sun, Mar 27, 2016 at 11:23 PM -0700, '
* wrote:

DearMr..m v " ~



As requested by the Ténartment of Ediication; as te an answer
from yourself oo .. requesting a Full Vet Fee
Help Re:-Credit, hias not been. given to-myself ner-to the
Depariment of Education in response to a formal request by
email from

Mr Breit Peterson, of the Department of Educition; as-outlined
in his-eniail below. '

I iweiild formally liketo ascertain an answer from yourself
regarding this.overdue.and prolonged_rg_quest for aFull Vet

Fee'Help Re-Credit concerning all parties involved please.

Kind Regards,

From: PETERSON,Brett _-
Sent: Tuesday, 15 March 2016 1:05:31 PM

To: ! u
ce: H by
Siibject: Bruce Hartwig Flying School Pty Lte. ..., bs - VET

FEE-HELP re-credit [SECEUNELASSIFIED]

Tor
HITS) © ~ 77 e T 'mad
Ce:

=
[t

Dea

A former student of Briice Hartwig Flying School Pty Ltd (BHFS])

as hag written to the Department of Education and
Training seeking review.of the-decision by BHFS not te re- credit
under clause 46 of the Higher Education Support Act 2003 (HESA).

We understand there:-has been consideration of the matter by the -
Administrative Appeals Tribunal (AAT), and that BHFS agreed to
review the matter in accordance with clause 51 of HESA.

If BHES conclude that ré-credit is not appropriate under.clausé 51,
then we would be grateful if they weuld pléase'conduct a
reconsideration of the request made in accordance with clause-46.
That reconsideration {which would bé under the terms-of clause 85)
$hotild, asthe AAT has indicated, specifically address the terms-of

.clause 46, includinga. coiisideration of whether there are. spegial
citcomstancesas defined by clause 48.

The AAT was.of course correct to-conclude that under the terms of
tlause 94 the power 6f reconsideration has been given to the
Secretary of the Department of Educationand Training. However,
the AAT will not hiave been specifically aware that the Secretary has
delegated power to conduct a reconsideration ufider cladse 95 ta-a
review officer of a VET FEE-HELP provider (who is appropridtely
independeiit and senior).



1f BHFS is unable to.conduct a.reconsideratian forsome reason,
waould you please let me know,

Twould be grateful of you would let me know the eutcome of your
consideration of these matters please,

Further information regarding formal complaints and special
circumstances is below:

If a student'has a complaint they are able to raise it with their
provider thraugh the provider’s formal grievance process. This
includes requests for HELP debts to be remitted. A provider has the
discretion to rémit of cancel a student’s HELP debt dependent on
the nature of the complaint. If the matter cannot be satisfactorily
resplved following your complaint, all providers have a
review/appeal process. Thereafter; reviewed decisions may be
referred to an independent external arbitrator, nominated by the
provider, for further ¢onsideration. This information will be outlined
in the provider’s policy-documents. :

Students may also request debt remission in cases where certain
defined special circumstances -apply, and reviews of unsuccessful
applications can be referred to-the Administrative Appeais Fribunal
{AAT). All providers should have their special circumstances policy
available on their website.

Further information on special circumstances is available on the
Study Assist website

- at www.studyassist.gov.au/sites/studyassist/payingbackmyloan/re-
crediting-a=help-debt/pages/remitting:a-help-debt, and additional
information on applications to the AAT is available
at www.aat.gov.au/applying-for-a-review. Please note, there are no
provisions under the Higher Education Suppoert Act 2003te have a
debt remitted if the student has successfully completed their unit of
study.

l also refer you to Chapter 10 (Re-crediting and remission) of the
Higher Education Providers: VET Administrative Informiation for
Providers (AIP), available at: http://www.education.gov.aufhelp-
resources-providers.

Regards,

Brett Peterson

VET FEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programimies Group

Australian Government Department of Education and Training
Ema

Opportunity through learning

www.education:gov.au
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Notice:.

The information contained in this email. message and any:
attached files may be confidential information, and may also be
the subject of legal piofessional privilege: If you.are not the
intended recipient, any tse, disclostre or copying of this email
isunauthorised. If you recéived this ethail in errok, please
notify the sender by contacting the. department's switchboard
on. 1300.566 046 duririg busiriess. hours (8am - 5pm Local
time) and delete all copies of this transmission together with

any éttachme‘ntis.

, yntained in-this email message and any
attached files may be confidentialinformation, and may also
be the subject of legal professional-privilege. If you are not the
intended recipient, any use, disclosure or capying of this email
is.uriauthorised. If you recéived this.email-in efror, please
notify thie sender by-contacting the départment's switchboard
on 1300566 046 during business hours (8am - 5pm Local
time) and delete ail copies of this transmission togethet with
any attachments.

Regards

- ', Hartwig. Air Group
Parafield Airport |'South Austi, = *Fene
Office: +61 (0) 882584244 | ... . __

www:hartwigair.com.au
WWW. hanwngalrchangr.cgm au
WwWW. hartwngalrmternatlonal com

LI SN PR I

Regards

", Hartwig Air Group:

Parafield Airport | South Austr-~fia 5106
Offi ice: +61 (0) 88258 4244 |

veww. hartwigair.com.du
www.hartwigaircharter.com.au
wwwihartwigairinternational.com




Regards

[

~Hartwig Air Group

Parafield Airport | South Austratia.1 5106
Office: +61 (0) 8 8258 4244 |

www.hartwigair.com.au
www.hantwigaircharter.com.ay
www.hartwigairinternational.com
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Attachment F

- copy of material relating to.review decision




PETERSONgﬂgﬁ
‘From: PETERSON,Brett

0-( LV FANAD N L ARA
Sent: -~

To: ettt et
Subject: FW: Attn Mr Brett Pe'nrenn rSEC=UNCLASSlF!ED]

Attachments; Review of Decision - If

o o PRSRPRP Y

Paul,

Thank you-for your email,

You asked about the content of a.record of reviéw such as this. As we discussed, the content of the record of your
review is entirely a matter for you — uitimately it simply needs to be fit for purpose.

Broadly put, I'would typically recammend that a review decision cover:

the evidence and other material congidered, including reference to-the relevant legislation (or at feast that
such material is retained with-the record of review)
» therelevant facts that have been-determined to exist (which might relevantly mean, in some.cases,
indicating that certain facts have been found to be irrelévant or not to exist)
a finding-about whether the ultimate conclusion of fact is made out — that is, here, a finding about whether
there are special circumstances, with reference to the statutory definition
« adecision in terms-of the law — that is:

o confirm the original decision;.or

o vary the original decision; or

.0 set the original decisin~ -~*de and substitute a new decision
» .given the matter raised by -4, perhaps directly address the issue of-authority to make the review
decision— if you haven’t already done so, | woiild recommend you have a quick look at the materia headed
‘Reviewable VET decisions’ at page 55 of the document available at
https://docs.education.gov.au/node/33971

Brett Peterson

VET FEE-HELP Branch | Skills Programmes Group

Auctralian Cavarnment Department of Education arid Training
Ph. ...

Email:

:Opportunity through learning

Awww.educati'on.gov.au

From: Education - TQSS - Tertiary Study Enquiries

‘Sent: Monday, 30 May 2016 2;26 PM

To; PETERSON;Brett )

Subject: FW: Attn Mr Breft Peterson [SEC=UNGLASSIFIED]

‘Hi Brett
Please see below and attached regarding ... 1nd Bruce Hartwig Flying School.

Thanks



BK

From:  _. =]

Sent: :Menda_y,-éw. ™may 2016 1:56 PM N
To: Education - TQSS - Tertiary Study Enquiries

Subject: Attn MrBrett Péterson

‘Good afternoon Brett,

Attachied'is my Review of Decision in the mitter of imbs complaint with Bruce Hartwig Flying

School. -~ — .

I have emailed this Réview to . and will provide him, with a written cepy by post.
Please contact me:if you require furthe: information;

‘Regards

R

Hartwng Anrl Bru:cé.Hartw-ig{!-':lyin-g.sch'ool
Parafield Airport | South Australia | 5106

e w4 (0% R enER 0566 | Mobile:

. [
Thie information in this e-mafl and any attach iscanfidentiatind niay bi subject 16 jegal professional privilege, itisintended solely for-the attention and-use of the named addcesseels). ifyou
are not the-intended recipient, or.person responsible for delivering this nformatiod 10 the intended recipient, please notify the sencer rnmadiately. Uniess you are the intended recigient or hisfher
ive'you are prohibited from, 3id ihérefoie mustrioy, read; copy, disiribute use'or retainathi orany paitofit, The views expressed in this e-mail may notreprescat thasé of

P!

Bruce Hartwig Fiying School,

Reply Forward’



REVIEW OF DECISION.

BRUCE HARTWIG FLYING SCHOOL —~ COMPLAINT B}

REVIEW OFFICER: . ) 7
Delegate urider the-Higher Education:Support Act 2603

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

ommenced the Advanced Diploma of Aviation ¢ourse at the Bruce
Hartwig Flying School (BHFS} in November 2013. He failed to complete the course within the
scheduled time. In October 2015 is filed a complaint with BHES management and’
requested-a full refund of course costs. It is notec 5 has received training against
his VET FEE-HELP subsidy advanced to BHFS.

n Noveniber 2015 by — - of BHFS advised that the company had
rejected.... .. bs complaint and request for a full refund.

15’has since requested.a review of this-decision uridér provisiens in the Higher
Education Support Act 2003.

In reviewing the facts and related information, |, ~ make the following findings:-

1. BHFS and: s acted appropriately under thé requirements of the Higher
Education Support Act 2003.

2. Netwithstanding weather and aircraft availability delays, it appears to me that BHFS
fulfilled its obligations by operating training programs as far as was possible,

3 5 had preblems achieving the required academic standards and he did not
make himself available full time. | find that these two factors are the main reasont
failed to complete the course within the time specified.

4. Noting the learning delays-experienced by BHES éxténded the Course
Completion date by 113 days.to 23 june 2015. Even with this extension )S.Was
unable to complete the base level Private Pilot Licence qualification (PPL}. In iy experience
{which includes timeé as a Chief Flying Instructor in the 1980s), a full time student can
achieve the PPL ih 113 days let alone more than.a calendar year available t¢

£ ... 15 requested a review of BHFS’ decision under Clause 96 of Schedule 1A-of the
Act and provided written natice setting out reasons for his request. Thase:reasons have
beeh considered at some length but do not satisfy me under Clause 48 that the reasons
sufficiently demoristrate special éircumstances. Under part (a) of Clause 48 a number of the
reasons subrmittéd wereunder .... s control, In addition under part (¢) of Clause 48,
BHFS did nothing to make it impractical for - " to-complete the training withinthé
specified period. The fact that BHFS provided additional theory training 't hel 1S
achieve the required standard and the Course Completion date-was extenided fram 2 March
2015-to 23 June 2015; (ari additional period of 113 days), demonstrate BHFS made practical
efforts to assist ] try ahd achieve success.with the course.

MAY 2016 REVIEW OF DECISION - BRUCE HARTWIG FLYING SCHOOL - COMPLAINT MADE BY



Determination: Under Clause 96(4) and.in.consideration of the facts beforé me; I-cofifirm
the:decision made by BHFS in-November2015:

Signed:

__28May 2016. e _ S
BACKGROUND
1. ) . w s enrollediin the Advaniced Diplotiia of Aviation course (157255A) at
Bruce Hartwig Flyiig School on 26 August 2013.~ i initialled the enrolment

application acknowledging he -had read and understood the conditions of Enroimént and
Exterral Tuition offer. This included his acknowledgement that he had read and understood
the information in the VET FEE-HELP information booklet.

2. The Bruce Hartwig.Flying School accepted enrolmient with a Coitrse
Commencement Date of 25 November 2013, Further the Course Census Date was stated-as
10 February 2014 dnd the stated Course Completion date was.2 March 2015.

3. For various reason: ' did not:complete the course within the assigned period..
From records provided to the Review Officer; there were periods when vdid:not

attend full time, he had.learning difficulties and he did not respond te the (June 2015) BHFS
Credit offer-that was desighed (2 fielp achieve the Comrercial Pilot Licerice outcamie.

4. Concerning ... . ._s attendance during the course schedule; two staff members.and
three former students at BHFS recalled periods when - was absent. It has béen
alleged that was employed part:time as.a long haul truck driver. Further it is

-alleged he was. not only absent for several days at.a time but needed at least one day, rest
on atrival back in Adefaide. During the review it was not established .exactly how fmany days

was absent but the five witnesses all:gave similar accounts.leading to the:
conclusior that the absences were:not rare-events..

5. Allegations have been made that BHFS was understaffed duririg the course. Staff records
show an under-utilisation of ifistructors contrafy to the allegations.

6. On 28:0ctober 20151 . wrote to.BHFS with a formal complaint in relation:to his
training ard requésted a refund of $87,060:¢ourse costs on the-grounds of ‘special:
circumstances'.

7. On 26 November 2015 BHFS Pirector ' replied with an.exténsive
responseto omplaint. This replyinciuded a rejection of " request for

a refund,

MAY 2016 REVIEW OF DECISION - BRUCE HARTWIG FLYING SCHGOL - COMPLAINT MADE BY 2



8. Review Officer comméiit based on the information provided,
(a) Itappears ....r< complaineéd about a lack of bookings.for flight training during part
of the PPL stage but failed:to understand that he could not undertake further flight training
atthat-point unitil achieving a pass in the theory training. This limitation is a CASA
requirement and hadto be adhered to by BHFS, which it did. '
(b) ... *omplairned that in September 2014 during-a flight “the instructor ~-..

ald me, in flight, that he was unable to help me with the entire flight”. Under
nermal flight training conditions; this is a correct scenario. Dufing navigation exercises, the
student pilot is given credit for previeus flying training achievements and is expected to be
able'to fly the aircraft under normal conditions. In addition, following extensivé pre-flight
briefing; the student is expected (at a basic level of competence) to fly a heading, hold an
altitude; manage the engine power setting and.attempt basic map reading with guidance.
fro the instructor. That is what navigation exercises are, a learning experience about
navigation but not training'in basi¢ flying. 'There_'f'q‘re it is.inappropriate for an instructor.to
be expected to assist with the entire flight.

{c) When the truck driving allegation ahd non attendance.to theory classes was put to
——-...0s, he denied this occurred. The récollections of five:others to-a contrary view have
been assessed as likely to 'be valid but it is pointed out factual information was not available
from } employer at the time of this review. It is hoted that .... . did attend
theory tutorials each Tuesday from January to the end of june 2014 but né-explanation for
< lack of progress could be positively identified except ™~ i had learning
difficulties. '
{d) There is evidence that a number of students including ‘ailed to appreciate
the attendance Hours required. A Commercial Pilot Course ¢onducted over 12-15 months is
an intensive period of theory arid flight training. It requires at least five days per week at the
school plus many hours of private study after hours. ‘Without-this leve! of dedication, a
student will-fall behifd the schedule with little chance of catching up any lost time.

(e) In relation te:(d) above, it is the-opinion of the Review Officer that the original course
content-was an intensive course for the time allocated and was-unlikely to be achieved
except by total dedication.and with né:operational delays. In addition only students with
above average academiic skills and study habits would be likely to achieve the required
standard witliin the-original plannéd time peried. During :ourse, the BHFS was
sold. To the:credit of the new ownérs, they recognised the problems being experienced by a
number of students and responded by extending: the course completion date by 113 days,
provided additional theory coaching and offered credits.for flight training to continue {after
the course completion date) in order for students to.reach their goal of a CPL.
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DESIGNATED VEY FEE-HELP'REVIEW OFFICER = REGULATORY REFERENCES

1. Relevant Act )
Higher Education Support Act.2003, Compilation No.59 Registered 10:February 2016.

2. Review Officer is empawered under:-
Schedule 1A Part 2 VET FEE-HELP Assistance / Division 7 / Sub-division 7b / Clause 46.

Subdivision 7-B—FEE-HELP balances R , . .

46 Main case of re-crediting.a:person's FEE-HELP halance:

{1)if.clayse 46A0r.51 apglies lo-réEredit a person’s -FEE-HELP balance with:an amounf equalio the amounts.of ‘VET FEE-HELP
assistance hatthe person has received for'a ‘VET unit-of study, than this clause doss not apply in relation:to.thal unit
‘Note: For FEE-HELP balance; see Secion 104:15, indfor FEE-HECP fimilt, %08 ségtion 104120, =~ 7 ° "7 "= "7 " 3
(2) A-VET provider must, on tfie *Secretary's béhaif, re-credit'a person's *FEE-HELP balance with dn afbiintequal to the amounts
of VET FEE-HELP aasistance'that the person.received:for a “VET- uait of study if: .
(a) thie person has been enrolled in Itie unit-with the provider; and _
(b the peréon-has not completed ihe requirements for the unit durng the:period diiring:which the person- undertook, or was
to-uiidertake, the.unit; and . » .
(¢).the provider is salisfied that special cifcumstances appiy lo the person (see clause 48); and.
(d) Ihehpecson applies in-writing o the provider for.re-crexiling ofthe FEE-HELP ballance; and
{e) either- ) .

(i} the appiication is miade before the end of the application period-under.clause 49; or o .

(iiy thé. provider waives the requirementthat therapplication:be made-before the end of that period, ‘on the-ground fhat fwould notbe,
. 3¢'was nol, possible.for the application:to be-made before the snd of that period. _
Notd: AVET FEE-HELP debt relatingio & VET unil of study will be remitied if he FEE-HELP: balance in relation'to the urit I3 fe-crediled: see section 137-18.
(3).1f the. provider is unableto:act for orie or more of the purposes of subclause (2), orclause 48, 49.0F 50, ifie “Secretary. may-actas’if’
one ormore oflhie references in‘those.provisians to ihe providerwere.a referenca io the Secelary. -

48 Special circumstances' i

For:the purposes of-paragraph 46(2)(c), special.circumstances.apply-to the:person if and.only-if the;"VET. provider receiving the
applicalion is salisfied that circumstances apply'to the pérson.that: ) ’

{a) are-beyond:the person’s coanlrol;-and ’ _

(b} do not maké their full impact.on the person.urilil on.of afler the ~cégsis daté for the “VET unitof study in-quesiion; and

(c) make it impraclicable.for the: parson to complete the réquirements for the unit in the period during which the.person underlook, or
was 1o undertake; the unit.

,_S"ché@u(q 1A Part 1:Division 4 Clausg 21

21 VET providers to appoint review-officers ) ) e

(1) A*VET provider must appoint 2 review:afiicer to undertake:reviews of decisions made by the provider relating 1o-assistance

under Part 2,

-Note: The Secretacy may:delagale 1o a-reviéw oficer of'a-VET providerihe powar (o racansider decisions of the providar uiider Subdivision 16-C;.

see subcisuse 98{2). T o~

(2) A'review officer of a “VET provider is a persori, or.a person.included inaclass of persons; whom:
+{a) the chief. exécuiive-officer of.the provider; or ) . . . .
(b) 8 deiégate of\he chief executive atficar of the provider; has appoinited to:be 2 neview officer 6f the provider.forthe purposes of

reviewing decisions made by the, provider relating fo assisiance under'Part 2.

96 Reconsideration of reviewable VET decisions on.request

(4} Atter receiving the request, the reviewer:must reconsider thie decision-and:
(a)-confirm the.decision; or’ )
(b) vary the decision; o )
(c)set the decision aside add substitule a new dacision.

Schedule 1 Dictionary

review officér. . ) i e enp

{(a)-oFa higher education provider—has:the meanirip given by: subsection 18-50(2); and
(b) of “Open Universifies Ausiralia—has the meaning given'by subsaction:238-1(2B); and
{€).of a VET provider—has the méaning given by sUbclause 21(2) of Schedule:1A.
reviewer has the meanings given by seclion 209-1 ahd.clause's4 of Schedule 1A,

reviewable degision.nieans a.decision listed in the-tablé in seciion 206-1.
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